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Managing Northern Kentucky’s
Wastewater and Storm Water

December 3, 2013

To the Citizens Served by Sanitation District No. 1 (SD1) and to SD1's Board of
Directors:

SD1 and its Finance Department are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, This report follows
guidelines set forth by the Govemment Accounting Standards Board and Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of SD1.
Responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information presented rests
with SD1 Management. SD1 has worked to establish an internal control framework
that provides a reasonable basis for asserting that the financial statements are fairly
presented. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated benefits,
the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

SD1’s financial statements have been audited by Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc, a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that SD1’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013 are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved
examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, there was a reasonable basis for
issuing an unqualified (“clean”) opinion that SD1’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor's report is presented at the front of the financial section of this
report.

SD1 Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the
independent auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and
analysis of the basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal is intended to
complement the discussion and analysis and should be read in conjunction with it.
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Profile of SD1

SD1 is the second largest public sewer utility in Kentucky, serving approximately 325,000
residents across a service area of approximately 220 square miles, encompassing more
than 30 municipalities and unincorporated portions of Boone, Campbell and Kenton
Counties.

SD1 maintains more than 1,700 miles of sanitary sewer system pipeline, 142 wastewater
pumping stations, 15 flood pump stations, eight package treatment plants, three major
wastewater treatment plants, more than 400 miles of storm sewer system and more than
30,000 storm sewer structures.

In Fiscal Year 2013, SD1 served a sanitary sewer customer base of 102,418 accounts
and a storm water customer base of 94,766 accounts. SD1’s sanitary sewer customer
base has experienced a modest 0.647 percent average annual growth rate over the
past five years, while SD1's storm water customer base has experienced a modest
0.353 percent average annual growth rate over the past five years.

SD1 is governed by a citizen Board of Directors, consisting of eight members that serve
four-year staggered terms. County representation is based on the populations of the
three counties SD1 serves. Four Board members are appointed by the Kenton County
Judge Executive with the Kenton County Fiscal Courts approval, as Kenton County is
the most populous county in SD1’s service area. Two are appointed by the Campbell
County Judge Executive with the Campbell County Fiscal Couris approval, and two are
appointed by the Boone County Judge Executive with the Boone County Fiscal Courts
approval. SD1's Board was given the full power and authority granted by Kentucky
State Statute Chapter 220 and other applicable laws in administering, controlling and
managing the affairs of SD1, including the budgeting process. The Board and County
Judges Executive who appoint the members are required to review and give final
approval of SD1’s operating and capital budgets by July 1 of the year to which they

apply.
Factors Affecting Financial Conditions

Local Economy

SD1 is in Northern Kentucky, across the Ohio River from the City of Cincinnati, and is
classified as belonging to the Cincinnati Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). Per the
U.S. 2011 Census, Northern Kentucky's population was 369,730. SD1 derives strength
from the area’s diverse economic base of manufacturing, entertainment, retail and
commercial facilities. The local economy also benefits from its proximity to Cincinnati
and includes the Greater Cincinnati International Airport.

According to the Northern Kentucky Chamber of Commerce in its Economic Outlook
2013, the area economy has recovered at a slow and uneven rate and is expected to
continue a slow but steady improvement on a long road to recovery. The economic



signs are positive but still clouded by the uncertainty presented through government and
regulatory changes, banking policies, gas prices, unemployment and real estate issues.

During the past five years, the unemployment rate in the Cincinnati MSA has hovered
around 7 percent compared to a low of 5 percent in 2007 and a high of 9.9 percent in
2009. Regional unemployment is still lower than the national rate of 7.8 percent. Job
growth is expected to increase, but the rate of growth will vary across industry sectors.

Although the housing industry will not return to levels of growth seen in the middle of the
last decade, housing activity is showing signs of improvement and should provide a
significant plus to growth in the coming year.

Long Term Financial Planning

Many factors affect the funding and management of our wastewater and storm water
utility, the most prominent of which are SD1’s federal mandate io reduce wastewater
pollution of the region’s waterways and SD1's regional storm water management
program.

In 2007, SD1 entered into an agreement, or Consent Decree, with the U.S. EPA and the
Kentucky Energy and Environment Cabinet, taking action to reduce water pollution in
Northern Kentucky's creeks and streams. The Clean Water Act's regulations affect SD1,
because like many wastewater collection systems in the country, SD1 has portions of
the collection system that overflow during peak flow periods. During a heavy storm,
these pipes can become overloaded and overflow, releasing sewage on to the ground in
the adjoining area. An estimated $1.2 billion investment over a 20 year period is
required to address these overflows.

Other cities and utilities have entered into consent decrees like SD1, but SD1's Consent
Decree is somewhat unique. It is a comprehensive watershed approach that focuses on
improving regional water quality by addressing other sources of water pollution in
addition to reducing sewer overflows. This approach allows SD1 to develop efficient and
cost-effective solutions that consider the source of the problem in an area and
implement solutions specific to the cause and location. SD1 is also able to prioritize the
solutions so that those fixes which have the greatest improvement on water quality at
lower costs are addressed first.

Because the 2025 deadiine for SD1’s Consent Decree places a major financial burden
on the community, SD1 is currently working with state and federal officials to
renegotiate and extend the deadline to make the program more affordable to
ratepayers.

SD1 is also in the process of developing a long-term service plan for the Northem
Kentucky Regional Storm Water Program. This long-term service plan will set a course
for the Regional Storm Water Program over the next ten or more years to help SD1
meet the storm water management needs and customer expectations of our community.
To develop this long-term service plan, SD1 has been evaluating various storm water-
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related program initiatives revolving around the extent and level of service we plan to
provide to the community, management of our storm water assets, storm water billing
methodology and the role the storm water program plays in SD1’s Consent Decree.

Relevant Financial Policies

In April 1998, SD1’s Board of Directors established and approved a trust indenture to
assure a strong financial position and to protect SD1's revenue bond rating during
periods of fiscal stress. The trust indenture requires SD1 to maintain a rate covenant
such that net revenues will cover annual bond debt service of at least 1.25 times; a debt
service reserve fund requirement equivalent to maximum annual debt service that is
fully cash funded; an Operation and Maintenance fund requirement equivalent to three
months of operating expenses; and a self-insurance fund requirement of maintaining a
minimum of $5 million for the payment of liability claims against SD1.

At fiscal year end, SD1 had debt outstanding of $538,713,765. Outstanding bonds of
SD1 are rated Aa2 by Moody's and AA/Stable by Standard & Poor’s rating agencies.
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, net revenues covered debt service on both
revenue bonds and Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) notes by 1.4 times.
Unrestricted cash was at a level representing at least 170 days’ cash which equated to
$19.1 million.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in insured certificates of deposit,
repurchase agreements and obligations of the U.S. Treasury. SD1’s investment policy is
to minimize credit and market risk, while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio.
Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or
collateralized.

Maijor Initiatives

In order fo provide superior wastewater treatment and storm water management
services at an affordable rate to our customers, SD1 is engaging in a number of
initiatives to evaluate the associated cost of running a utility. Some of these efforts
include a Continuous Sewer improvement Program, an energy audit, an IT optimization
study, and a Fleet Management Assessment Program.

The Continuous Sewer Improvement Program involves proactively assessing the
condition and life cycle of the pipes in SD1’s collection system. Through this approach,
SD1 is able to utilize its resources more efficiently by prioritizing inspection, cleaning,
rehabilitation and replacement of the pipes within our service area. This program also
allows SD1 to minimize the number of overflows in our system, reduce the number of
basement backups and improve public health and safety measures.

An energy audit at SD1's treatment plants is being performed in order to target major
energy users and determine if and where SD1 can reduce energy usage and associated
costs while still maintaining compliance with regulations. Through this review, SD1 is
evaluating the possibility of modifying processes to decrease energy consumption,
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replacing equipment with more efficient models and making overall smarter decisions to
conserve energy.

The IT Optimization study is the first step being taken to complete a comprehensive
review of the utilities use of technology. To successfully deliver quality customer
service at a reasonable cost, SD1 will need to maximize the use of effective and
efficient technology. Through this study and subsequent steps, SD1 is evaluating how
technology currently in place is meeting the utilities business needs and where gaps
may exist and how best to address the shortcomings.

SD1 Is also working to reduce costs and improve efficiency through its Fleet
Management Assessment Program. Some of the initiatives being considered through
this assessment include exploring the option of using in-house resources for the
maintenance of SD1 vehicles; developing criteria for replacement of vehicles; and
utilizing GPS as a tracking tool to more efficiently distribute crews, respond to
emergencies and monitor vehicle metrics.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The report for the year ended June 30, 2013 is the first CAFR issued for SD1. We
believe that this current CAFR meets the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements, and we are submitting It to the Government Finance Officers Association
to determine its eligibility for a certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and

dedicated services of all SD1 departments and staff. We would like to express our
appreciation to all who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report.

Respectiully Submitted,

David E. Rage Ron Schmitt, Jr.
Executive Director Director of Finance
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Board of Directors
Sanitation District No. 1

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business type activities of
Sanitation District No. 1 (SD1), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise SD1’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

-Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

-Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
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Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc.

e Certified Public Accountants
=-Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Sanitation District No. 1 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 and the
respective changes in financial position thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

-Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 15-21 and the Budgefary Comparison
Schedules — Budget to Actual on pages 48-65 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Sanitation District No. 1's financial statements as a whole. The
Introductory Section and the Statistical Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of
the Sanitation District No. 1. The Introductory Section, the Statistical Section and the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

11
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Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc.

Certified Public Accocuntanis

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 22, 2013 on our consideration of Sanitation District No. 1's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Sanitation District No. 1's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Van Gorder, Walker & Co.,
Erlanger, Kentucky
November 22, 2013

13
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SDi1

Managing Northern Kentucky’s
. Wastewater and Storm Water

Sanitation District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Following is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013. The information below should be considered in conjunction with additional information that was
furnished in the letter of transmittal and basic financial statements included in this report.

Financial Highlights

The assets of SD1 exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent year by $753 million.
SD1’s total net position increased $7.0 million in 2013. This represents a 0.94% change from the
2012 balance.

* The operating revenues of SD1 increased by $5.8 million to $89.7 million at the close of the current
fiscal year.

* The operating expenses excluding depreciation increased by $5.0 million to $41.0 million at the
close of the current fiscal year.

* SDA’s total debt service increased by $5.1 million or 1% during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to SD1’s basic financial statements.
SD1's basic financial statements are the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position, the Statement of Cash Flows and the accompany notes to the financial
statements.

The Balance Sheet presents information on ali SD1’s assets and liabilities with the difference between the
two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of SD1 is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how
SD1's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. SD1 is intended to be entirely or
predominately self-supported from user charges. Revenues are reported when eamed and expenses are
reported when incurred.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information relating to SD1’s cash receipts and dishursements
during the fiscal year. This statement summarizes net changes in cash resulting from operating, investing
and financing activities.

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in SD1's basic financial statements. The notes to the financial staternents can be
found on pages 30 to 47 of this report.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents other

required supplementary information concerning budgetary comparisons. Other required supplementary
information can be found on pages 48 to 65 of this report.
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Financial Analysis of SD1’s Financial Position and Results of Operation

Table 1 provides a summary of SD1’s net position at June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Table 1
Net Position
June 30,
2013 2012

Current Assets $ 59354469 $ 55815108
Restricted Assets 104,042,153 107,472,951
Non-current Assets, Net 1,062,608 , 1,097,553
Capital Assets, Net 1,161,235,878 1,149,837,059
Total Assets 1,325,685,208 1,314,222,671
Deferred QOutflow of Resources 3,458,564 4,071,573
Current Liabilities 40,261,848 . 33,519,949
Liabilities from Restricted Assets 9,554,659 11,062,340
Non-current Liabilities 525,986,401 527 405,468
Total Liabilities 575,802,908 571,977,757
Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 617,863,936 610,547,627
Restricted 97,946,058 100,596,825
Unrestricted 37,530,870 . 35,172,035

Totat Net Position $ 753,340,864 § 746,316,487

Net Position of 8D1 increased 0.94% to $753,340,864 in 2013 from $746,316,487 in 2012. This is basically
flat growth for the current fiscal year. The largest portion of SD1’s net position $817 million (82.0%) reflects
its investment in capital assets such as land, buildings, treatment facilities, and collection systems, less any
related debt still outstanding used to acquire those assets. SD1 uses these capital assets to provide
services to its customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although SD1’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portibn of SD1’s net position is considered to be restricted. This amount represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance $37.5 million
represents unrestricted net position and may be used to meet SD1's ongoing obligations to customers and
creditors.
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Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for 2013, as well as the revenue and expense comparisons fo

2012.
Table 2
Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30,

2013 2012

Operating Revenues:
Sewer senice charges $ 73,562,515 $ 68,369,740
Storm_water charges 11,751,183 11,388,734
Permits and tap in fees 2,340,792 1,765,957
Sludge hauling 120,776 147,409
Inspections 68,682 69,300
Penalties 1,581,774 1,431,386
Contractual senices 125,689 141,038
Bad debt recoweries 35,392 19,097
Other revenues 50,993 69,044
Project reimbursements 68,321 549,579
Total Operating Revenues 89,707,117 83,951,284

Operating Expenses
Operations, maintenance, and administration 36,544,843 31,080,924
Major repairs and other expenses 4,495,306 4,912 935
Depreciation 40,245,842 © 39,593,040
Total Operating Expenses 81,285,991 75,586,899
Operating Income 8,421,126 8,364,385
Non-Operating Revenues 2,125,131 2,424,225
Interest and Other Charges {19,374,553) (18,296,538)
Change in Net Assets Before Capital Contributions (8,828,296) (7,507,927)
Capital Contributions 15,852,673 6,064,545
Change in Net Position 7,024,377 (1,443,382)
Net Position - Beginning 746,316,487 751,389,718
Prior Pericd Adjustment - (3,629,849}
Net Position - Ending % ‘753,340,864 $ 746,316,487

In fiscal year 2013, SD1 showed a 0.68% increase in operating income of $8,421,126 compared to
$8,364,385 in 2012. After the effects of non-operating revenues and interest charges, SD1 showed an
increase in net position for the year of $7,024,377 compared to ($1,443,382) in fiscal year 2012. The
significant difference between the two years was due to capital contributions of storm water assets from the
City of Fort Wright of $12,464,000 made in fiscal year 2013.

Operating revenues increased 6.9% over the previous year which was primarily a result of a 15% sanitary
‘sewer rate increase that was effective April 1, 2012. Operating expenses increased by 7.54% over the
previous year which was primarily a resuit of the Western Regional Reclamation Facility being fully
operationai as of April 2012, and increased maintenance requirements associated with the storm water
asset transfers from Northern Kentucky cities.
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Non-operating revenues were $2,125,131 for fiscal year 2013, a decrease over the previous year of 12.3%.
The majority of this decrease was the result of the 2013 federal budget sequester which reduced the level
of reimbursement for Build America Bond (BAB's) interest payments by 8.7%. Interest expense and other
charges were $19,374,553 an increase of 3.9% over the previous year and was attributable to increased
interest on new bonds and notes.

Capital Assets
At June 30, 2013 total capital assets reported was $1,477,832,829 including land, buildings, sewer
systems, equipment, and vehicles. This represents a net increase of $49,835,928, or 3.5% over 2012. This

increase is due to SD1's investment in sewer projects, vehicles, equipment and storm water assets
contributed by Northern Kentucky cities during the fiscal year.

These assets are summarized in table 3 below.

Table 3
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
June 30,

Asset Type 2013 2012
Collection system $ 649,183,792 $ 623,052,699
Pump stations 85,077,857 74,563,508
Treatment and disposal 227,871,380 225,901,841
General piant and equipment 76,770,943 75,627,421
Sanitation software model 15,967,050 15,967,050
Storm water land 466,989 409,728
Storm water vehicles 25,027 -
Storm water equipment 31,068 -
Storm water collection 374,959,787 356,814,655
Storm water software model 5,645,160 5,645,160
Construction in progress

Sanitation 40,814,200 45,654,791

Storm water 1,019,566 3,460,048
Subtotal 1,477,832,829 1,427,996,201
Less: accumulated depreciation (316,596,851) (278,159,842)
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 1,161,235,978 $ 1,149,837,059

Debt and Capital Asset Administration
At year end, SD1 had $538,713,765 in outstanding bonds and notes compared to $533,605,098 in 2012,

an increase of 1.0% as shown in Table 4. SD1 did not add any new bonds in 2013, but added $16,223,668
to the notes payable. These funds were utilized to help fund the necessary capital improvement projects.
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Table 4 summarizes SD1 outstanding debt at June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Table 4
Debt Summary
June 30,
2013 . 2012

Bonds Payable Obligations
(Backed by User Fee Rewenues) $ 385,915,000 $ 397,030,000
Notes Payable
(Backed by User Fee Rewenues) 152,798,765 136,575,098

Totals $ 538,713,765 $ 533,605,008

Operational Budget vs. Actual Revenues and Expenses

During the fiscal year 2013, SD1's actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $509,117 which
primarily was a result of higher than anticipated capacity connection fees. Aciual expenditures were below
budget by $1,693,893. Three operational areas, the collection system, pump stations, and the Western
Regional spent in excess of their operating budgets during 2013. The Collection system exceeded their
operating budget by $1.2 million which was primarily due to higher than anticipated medical claims, higher
than anticipated operations and maintenance emergencies and a lower than anticipated amount of salaries
and wages being reallocated to capital projects.

The budget to actual results for each operating area for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 is summarized in tables
5 and 6 below.

Table 5
Operations Budget versus Actual, 2013
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Budget Actual Variance
General Revenues $ 89198000 $ 89,707,117 § 509,117
Dry Creek Treatment Plant 8,692,336 7,521,686 1,170,650
Eastern Regional WRF 1,744,212 1,186,211 558,001
Western Regional WRF 2,631,089 2,777,256 {146,167)
Collection System ‘ 5,495,233 6,690,371 (1,195,138)
Field Tech/Pump Stations 4,881,259 4,910,199 (28,940)
Engineering 2,518,777 2,307,176 211,601
Storm Water 5,275,391 4,600,017 675,374
Administration 7,000,439 6,551,927 448 512

38,238,736 36,544,843 1,693,893
Excess of revenues over

general expenses $ 50959284 % 53,162274 $ 2,203,010
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Table 6
Operations Budget versus Actual, 2012

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budget ' Actual Variance
General Revenues $ 83,370,000 $ 83,951,284 $ 581,284
Dry Creek Treatment Plant 8,847,351 8,241,636 . 805,715
Eastern Regional WRF 1,697,600 -1,323,290 374,310
-Western Regional WRF 759,715 659,943 99,772
Collection System 3,863,849 4,396,626 (632,677)
Field Tech/Pump Stations 4,504,347 4,724,389 {220,042)
Engineering 1,169,603 1,702,452 (532,849)
Storm Water 4,044,158 3,813,515 230,843
Administration 6,434,536 6,219,073 215,463
31,321,259 31,080,924 240,335
Excess of revenues over
general expenses $ 52,048,741 $ 52,870,360 $ 821,619

Economic Factor’s and Next Year's Budget

Pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statues KRS Chapter 220.542, SD1 is now required to have all fees,
charges and rates approved by the majority of the fiscal courts, if the rate increase is five percent or
greater. SD1 presented two budget scenarios to the Board of Directors, Fiscal Courts and Stakeholders to
consider as the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget. The Board of Directors recommended a Bond Compliance
Budget that included a 9% rate increase in sewer rates. The Fiscal Courts did not approve the 9% rate
increase necessary to fund the Bond Compliance Scenario budget. Subsequently further adjustments
were made and the Board recommended a Fiscal Year 2014 budget with a zero percent increase in
sanitary rates and a cost of living increase of 2.49% in the storm water surcharge rate and other
miscellaneous user fees. The recommended budget was then approved according to Kentucky Revised
Statues KRS Chapter 220.035.

The impact to revenue in FY 2014 is an estimated decrease of $1.4 million over the previous year's actual
revenues. The majority of this decrease is projected to be in the sanitary services revenue. Since SD1's
billing is based upon water consumed and the average water consumption by residential households has
been declining on average about 2% a year, a zero percent change in rates ultimately franslates in a
‘decline in revenue.

As a result of the anticipated decline in revenues, SD1's Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Budget for the
2014 fiscal year calls for reductions and eliminations of certain programs and services in order to continue
operations in light of rising costs associated with healthcare, fuel, utility costs, and debt payments while at
the same time remaining compliant with all bond covenants. In addition, the Capital Improvement Projects
Budget was reduced to $27.9 million and primarily includes those projects associated with the Federal
Court Order (Consent Decree) that have a specific completion date requirement of 2015.

SD1 issued $60.5 million in Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds and Build America Bonds early
in fiscal year 2011 to help meet the capital budget requirements. At the end of fiscal year 2013, there was a
balance remaining of $15.6 million of bond funds to be used for capital projects in FY14. SD1 is not
anticipating issuing any new revenue bonds in this fiscal year. SD1 will continue to evaluate utilizing
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funding for capital projects through the Commonwealth of Kentucky's Revolving Loan Fund Program when
applicable.

Contacting SD1’s Financial Management
This report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of SD1’s finances

and to show SD1's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact SD1's Administrative Office at 1045 Eaton Drive, Fort Wright, KY 41017.
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2013

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

ASSETS
Current Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Customers, net of allowance
Communities
KIA loan receivable
Others
Due from cther fund
Accrued unbilled charges
Prepaids and deposits
Accrued interest income
Total Current Assets

Restricted Assets
Cash
Investments
Receivables
Assessments
Improvement notes
Accrued interest
Prepaid items
Total Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Unamortized bond costs and discount, net

Capital Assets
Land, building, system, equipment, and vehicles
Construction in progress
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred refunding costs on defeased bond debt

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW
OF RESOURCES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sanitation Stormwater Total
$ 19,058,529 $ - $ 19,058,529
8,634,124 2,398,991 11,031,115
24,631 - 24,631
4,235,102 4,235,102
3,741,641 - 3,741,641
A 11,461,121 11,461,121
7,731,700 1,458,700 9,190,400
583,402 12,750 596,152
13,569 2,209 15,778
44,022 698 15,331,771 59,354,469
18,677,365 - 19,577,365
81,293,124 1,320,248 82,613,373
1,644,649 - 1,644,649
5,130 5130
162,282 - 152,282
49 354 - 49,354
102,721,904 1,320,249 104,042,153
1,052,608 1,052,608
1,054,871,033 381,128,031 1,435,999,064
40,814,199 1,019,566 41,833,765
~ {263,554,5652) (63,042,299) (316,596,851)
832,130,680 329,105,298 1,161,235,978
979,927,890 345,757,318 1,325,685,208
3,458,564 - 3,458,564

$ 983,386,454 .

$ 345,757,318

$1,329,143,772
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
June 30, 2013 '

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and benefits
Accrued taxes and pension
Due to other fund
Communities
Other accruals
Sales tax payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable

Total Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Liabilities

Notes payahle

Bonds payable, net of amortization
Total Noncumrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sanitation Stormwater Total
$ 7,430,908 % 1,087,971 8,518,879
1',435,85_8 312,040 1,747,898
2,772 - 2,772
11,461,121 11,461,121
156 - 156
45,183 45,183
47,580 - 47,580
18,354,751 83,498 18,438,248
38,778,339 1,483,509 40,261,848
1,272,339 51,845 1,324,184
8,227,124 3,351 8,230,475
9,499,483 55,196 9,554,659
144,046,488 1,744,028 145,790,516
380,195,885 - 380,195,885
524,242 373 1,744,028 525,986,401
572,520,175 3,282,733 575,802,908
290,586,164 327,277,772 617,863,936
96,681,005 1,265,053 97,946,058
23,599,110 13,931,760 37,530,870
410,866,279 342,474,585 753,340,864
$ 983,386,454 $ 345,757,318 $1,329,143,772
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2012

ASSETS AND DEFERRED QUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Customers, net of allowance
Communities
KIA loan receivable

Others

Due from other fund

Accrued unbilled charges

Prepaids and deposits

Accrued interest income
Totat Current Assets

Restricted Assets

Cash

Investments
Receivables
Assessments
Improvement note
Accrued interest
Prepaid items
Total Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Unamortized bond costs and discount, net

Capital Assets
Land, building, system, equipment, and vehicles
Construction in progress
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net -

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURGES
Deferred refunding costs on defeased bond debt

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW
OF RESOURCES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Restated
Sanitation Stormwater Total
9,464,525 3 - 9,464,525
7,863,246 : - 7,863,246
7,974,021 2,134,440 10,108,461
20,731 - 20,731
6,725,121 215,314 6,940,435
3,834,336 - 3,834,336
- 7,302,667 7,302,667
8,163,600 1,451,800 9,615,400
625,333 12,650 637,983
27,324 - 27,324
44,698,237 11,116,871 55,815,108
32,683,239 - 32,583,239
72,884,358 72,884,358
1,738,719 - 1,738,719
5,443 = 5,443
162,673 - 162,673
98,519 98,519
107,472,951 - 107,472,951
1,097,553 - 1,097,553
1,015,012,519 362,869,543 1,377,882,062
46,654,791 3,460,048 50,114,839
{239,808,381) (38,251,461) (278,159,842)
821,758,929 328,078,130 1,149,837,059
975,027 670 338,195,001 1,314,222 671
4,071,573 - 4,071,573
$ 979,099,243 $ 339,185,001 $ 1,318,294 244
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SANITATION DISTRICT NC. 1
BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
June 30, 2012

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and benefits
Accrued taxes and pension

Due to other fund
Communities
Other accruals

Current portion of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets

Accounts payable

Accrued interest payable
Totai Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes payable

Bonds payable, net of amortization
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIADIL

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

™
11

IES,
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Sanitation Stormwater Total
$ 11,670,834 $ 5038 $ 11,676,772
1,223,772 267,014 1,490,786
{104) - (104)
7,302,667 - 7,302,667
733 733
67,578 s 67,578
12,919,421 62,096 12,981,517
33,184,901 335,048 33,619,949
2,599,834 102,156 2,701,990
8,347,865 2,485 8,350,350
10,947 699 104,641 14,052,340
132,861,298 1,847,283 134,708,581
392,696,887 - 392,696,887
525,558,185 1,847,283 527,405 488
569,690,785 2,286,972 571,977,757
284,378,876 326,168,751 610,547,627
100,596,825 - 100,596,825
24,432 757 10,739,278 35,172,035
409,408,458 336,908,029 746,316 487
$ 979,099,243 $ 339,185,001 $1,318,294,244




SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Sewer service charges
Storm water charges
Permits and tap-in fees
Sludge hauling
Inspections
Penalties and fines
Contractual services
Bad debt recoveries
Other revenues
Project reimbursements

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation, maintenance and administration
Major repairs and other
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING INCOME
Interest income
Transfers (to)/from other fund
Gain/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets
Federal credits on Build America Bonds
Unrealized appreciation in fair market value
of investments

TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME

INTEREST AND OTHER CHARGES
Interest on long-term debt
Amortization of bond discount and expense

TOTAL INTEREST AND OTHER CHARGES

CHANGE iN NET POSITION EEFORE CAPITAL

CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, JULY 1, 2012
NET POSITION, JUNE 30, 2013

Sanitation Stormwater Total
$ 73,562,515 $ ' - $ 73562515
- - 11,751,183 11,751,183
2,299,707 41,085 2,340,792
120,776 - 120,776
49,132 20,550 © 69,682
1,393,688 188,086 1,581,774
125,689 - 125,689
33,185 2,207 35,392
30,993 20,000 50,993
68,321 - 68,321
77,684,006 12,023,111 89,707 117
31,944,826 4,600,017 36,544,843
3,463,909 1,031,397 4,495 306
25 360,200 14,885,552 40,245 842
60,769,025 20,516,966 81,285,991
16,914,981 (8,493 ,855) 8,421,126
822,390 9,242 831,632
(1,086,892) (723,886) (1,810,778)
3,590,813 - 3,590,813
(483,404) (3,132) (486,536)
2,842,907 (717,776) 2,125,131
19,290,678 40,778 19,331,456
43,097 : - 43,097
19,333,775 40,778 1 9,3_74,553
424 113 (9,252,409) (8,828,296)
1,033,708 14,818,965 15,852,673
1,457,821 5,566,556 - 7,024,377 -
409,408,458 336,908,029 746,316,487
$ 410,866,279 $ 342,474,585 $ 753,340,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND-CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Sewer service charges
Storm water charges
Permits and tap-in fees
Sludge hauling
Inspections
Penalties and fines
Contractual services
Bad debt recoveries
Other revenues
Project reimbursements

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation, maintenance and administration
Major repairs and other
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NON-OPERATING INCOME
fnterest income
Transfers (to)/from other fund
Gain/(Loss) on sale of fixed assets
Federal credits on Build America Bonds
Unrealized appreciation in fair market value
of investmerits

TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME

INTEREST AND OTHER CHARGES
Interest on long-term debt
Amortization of bond discount and expense

TOTAL INTEREST AND OTHER CHARGES

GHANGE IN NET POSITION BEFORE CAPITAL

CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
GCHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, JULY 1, 2011
Prior period adjustment
NET POSITION, JUNE 30, 2012

Restated
Sanitation Stommwater Total
68,369,740 - $ 68,369,740
- 11,388,734 11,388,734
1,718,725 47,232 1,765,957
147,409 - 147,409
47,399 21,801 69,300
1,263,360 168,026 1,431,386
141,038 - 141,038
17,530 1,567 19,097
69,044 - 69,044
6,610 542,969 549,579
71,780,855 12,170,429 83,951,284
27,267,409 3,813,515 31,080,924
4,283,385 629,550 4,812,935
24,692,750 14,900,290 39,593,040
56,243,544 19,343 355 75,586,899
15,537,311 (7,172,926) 8,364,385
723,911 - 723,911
1,973,008 (1,973,008) >

(1,542,781) (849,677) (2,392,458)
3,805,832 - 3,805,832
286,941 286,941
5,246,911 (2,822,685) 2,424,226
18,234,425 20,346 18,254,771
41,767 - 41,767
18,276,192 20,346 18,296,538
2,508,030 (10,015,957) (7,507,927)
2,157,706 3,906,839 6,064 545
4,665,736 (8,109,118) (1,443,382)
408,372,571 343,017,147 751,389,718
(3,629,849) : (3,629,849)
409,408 458 335,908,026  $ 746,316,487

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemenis.
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers
Paid to suppliers for goods and services
Paid to or on behalf of employees for services

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income
Net (increase) decrease on investrnents

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal received on notes and bonds
Federal credits on Build America Bonds
Cash received from sale of asset
Payments made on long term debt
Interest paid, net of capitalized interest
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets, net of contributed capital
{Increase) decrease in restricted funds

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss}

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (Increase} in receivables
Decrease (Increase) in accrued unbilled charges
Decrease (Increase) in assessments receivable
Decrease (Increase) in prepaid assets
increase (Decrease) in communities payable
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (Decrease) in accrued payroll and taxes
Increase (Decrease) in other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing Activities;
Capital assets contributed to the District

Supplemental Information
Interest expensed
Interest capitalized
Total

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sanitation Stormwater Total
$77,544598  § 7,595206 85,139,604
(21,113,193) (1,586,314)  (22,699,507) -
(14,085,503) (2,918,141)  (17,013,644)
42,335,002 - 3,000,751 45,426 653
846,536 7,033 853,569
(1,028,924) (1,323,381) (2,352,305)
{182,388) (1,316,348) (1,498,736)
20,722,931 215,314 20,938,245
3,590,813 - 3,500,813
223,786 - 223,786
(13,042,392) (81,853)  (13,124,245)
(19,867,563) (39,912)  {19,907,475)
(36,009,012) (1,817,641)  (37,826,653)
11,821,927 (50,311) 11,771,616
(32,559,510) (1,774,403)  (34,333,913)
9,594,004 - 9,594,004
9,464,525 - 9,464,525
$ 19,058,528 % - $ 19,058,529
$ 16,914,981  §$ (8,493,855) $ 8,421,126
25,360,290 14,885,552 40,245,842
(664,003) (4,421,005) (5,085,008)
431,900 (6,900) 425,000
92 695 z 92,695
41,931 (100) 41,831
(577) N - (577)
(81,472) 11,082,033 1,000,561
214,962 45,026 250,988
25,195 - 25,195
$ 42335902 $ 3,080,751 $ 45426653
$ 1,033,708  $14,818965 $ 15,852,673
$19,290678 $ 40,778  $ 19,331,456
1,957,098 - 1,957,008
$ 21,247,776 § 40,778 § 21,288 554




SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1§
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers
Paid to suppliers for goods and services
Paid fo or on behalf of employees for services

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in {out)
Investment income -
Net (increase) decrease on investments

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal received on notes and bonds
Federal credits on Build America Bonds
Cash received from sale of asset
Payments made on long term debt
Interest paid, net of capitalized interest
Acquisition and construction of fixed assets, net of contributed capital
(increase} decrease in restricted funds

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:

Depreaciation

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (Increase) in receivables
Decrease (Increase) in accrued unbilled charges
Dacrease (Increase) in assessments receivable
Decrease (Increase) in prepaid assets
Increase (Decrease).in communities payable
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (Decrease) in accrued payroll and taxes
Increase (Decrease) in other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Non-Cash Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital assets contributed to the District

‘Supplemental information
Interest expensed
Interest capitalized
Total .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Sanitation Stormwater Total
$69,710238  $11,441524 § 61,151 762
(17,590,538) (2,401,284)  -(19,991,822)
{11,857,349) {1,972,330) _ (13,829,679)
40,262,351 7,067,910 47,330,261

1,973,008 (1,973,008) -
768,608 - 768,608
(319) - {319)
2,741,297 (1,673,008) 768,289
38,870,420 1,093,496 39,963,916
3,805,832 - 3,805,832
203,895 a 203,895
(12,475,176) (39,012)  (12,514,188)
(18,988,265) {20,518)  (19,008,783)
(64,815,722) (5,738,416)  (70,554,138)
12,507,210 (390,452) 12,116,758
(40,891,806) (5,094,902)  (45,986,708)
2,111,842 - 2,111,842
7,352,683 - 7,352,683
$ 9464525 § - $ 9,464,525
$ 15,537,311  § (7,172,926) $ 8,364,385
24,692,750 14,900,290 39,593,040
{1,648,187) (669,605) (2,317,792)
(857,617) {59,300) (916,917)
435,187 - - 435,187
(5,628) {12,650) (18,278)
387 - 387
2,133,196 3,088 2,136,284
(14,875) 79,013 54,138
(10,173) . (10,173)
_$40.262,351 _$ 7,067,910 $ 47,330,261
$ 2157706 - $ 3,906,839 $ 6,064,545
$18234425 § 20346  $18.254.771
2682115 . 791 - 2,682,906
$20916540 $ 21137 "§20,937,677




SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 1 — REPORTING ENTITY

Sanitation District No. 1 (SD1) was created in 1946, pursuant to authority of Chapter 220 of the
Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended (the “Act”). In accordance with the Act, SD1 was established
by the Director of the Division of Sanitary Engineering of the Kentucky Department of Health on
December 4, 1946. A corporate charter was issued to SD1 by the Secretary of State of Kentucky on
December 27, 1946, giving SD1 power to prevent and correct the pollution of streams, to regulate the
flow of streams for sanitary purposes, to clean and improve stream channels for sanitary purposes and
to provide for the collection and disposal of sewerage and other liquid wastes produced within SD1.
SD1 has power under the Act to construct sewers, truck sewers, laterals, intercepting sewers, siphons,
pumping stations, treatment and disposal works and other appropriate facilities, and to maintain,
operate and repair the same.

In Juné, 2003, the Board approved the establishment of the Storm Water Program to develop and
implement plans for the collection and disposal of storm drainage and for effective programs and
policies that preserve or enhance the quality of storm water run off, and to reduce erosion and prevent
flooding.

SD1 is governed and operated by a Board of Directors, consisting of eight Directors, who serve for four-
year staggered terms, and such Directors may be reappointed. Directors are appointed by the County
Judges of Kenton, Boone, and Campbell Counties.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these
financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

SD1's financial statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. SD1 has adopted GASB Statements 60
through 65, and related interpretations issued through June 30, 2013.

Statement No. 65 —. Iltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities — Disallows . the
amortization of bond issuance costs over the life of the bond. Bond issuance costs must now be-
expensed in the period incurred. The provisions of this Statement generally are required to be applied
retroactively for all periods presented. '

Statement No. 64 ~ Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions ~ an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53 — Not applicable to SD1.

Statement No. 63 — Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position — Requires SD1 to report the amortized deferred refunding costs on
defeased bonds separately as a Deferred Outflow of Resources, instead of reporting this amount net of
the related bond liability. The provisions of this Statement generally are required to be applied
retroactively for all periods presented.
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 14
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Statement No. 62 - Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements — This Statement incorporates in
GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements. '

Statement No. 61 — The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 34 - This Statement modifies Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, and the related financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements
— and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, to add certain
requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity.

Statement No. 60 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements ~
Not applicable to SD1.

All activities of SD1 are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) reporting entity.
Proprietary entities are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of ihe governing body is that the cost (expense,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues sarned, expenses incurred, andfor net income is appropriate for
capital maintenance, public policy, management confrol, accountability, or other purposes. The
accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to SD1 is determined by its measurement focus.
The transactions of SD1 are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With
this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operations are included on the
balance sheet. Net assets (j.e., total assets net of total liabilities) are segregated into “invested in
capital assets, net of related liabilities”; “restricted”; and “unrestricted” components. The basic financial
statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted Enterprise Fund accounting principles
as applicable to public waste water utilities. The following is a summary of the significant policies. As
previously stated, the accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Fund Structure

Sanitation District No. 1 has established the following two funds for the purpose of segregating the two'
primary purposes of SD1 into discernible self-balancing accounts:

1. Sanitation Fund
2. Storm Water Fund

Sanitation Fund

The Sanitation Fund accounts for financial resources used for general types of operations and
expenditures for operation and maintenance of the following budgeted expense areas:

1. Dry Creek Treatment Plant
2. Eastern Regional Waste Water Reclamation Facility
3. Western Regional Waste Water Reclamation Facility
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Collection System
Pump Stations
Engineering
Administration

Noos

The Sanitation Fund collects user fees from customers for the collection, transmittal, treatment and
disposal of sewage wastewater. This fund also tracks the related expenditures to operate maintain,
and grow this system, as well as the costs associated with monitoring and regulatory compliance.

Storm Water Fund

The storm water program was established to develop and implement plans for the collection and
disposal of storm drainage and for effective programs and policies that preserve or enhance the quality
of storm water runoff, control the quantity of storm water runoff, and to reduce erosion and prevent
flooding. The federal government requires communities to apply for a storm water discharge permit and
develop a storm water management program. The accounting for the fund was approved by the Board
of Directors in June 2003.

The regulation is known as the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and it is
administered by the US Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA). In the State of Kentucky, it is
known as the Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (KPDES), and the Kentucky Division of
Water administers it on a statewide level. Local governments are issued KPDES Storm Water
Discharge Permits and administer the program at a local level. Virtually all Northern Kentucky
communities are required to comply with these unfunded storm water regulations, and SD1 has
assisted them with the development of a cooperative storm water management program for the region
under Inter-Local Agreements with the local governments. SD1 is also a co-permitee on the KPDES
permit,

The storm water surcharge is a service fee that funds the Storm Water Management Program
administered by SD1. The fee applies to all improved properties, with the exception of the properties
classified as agricultural by the respective county Property Valuation Administrators, and public
roadways in the storm water service area of SD1 established by the Kentucky Division of Water. The
basic storm water surcharge fee shall be based upon impervious area rate methodology.

Use of Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, designated fund balances, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes
to conform with the presentation of the current year financial statements.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

SD1 considers all highly liquid unrestricted debt instruments purchased with original maturities of 80
days or less to be cash equivalents. For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on
hand, cash in checking accounts and cash in investment sweep accounts.

SD1 is authorized by bond resolutions to invest in direct obligations of the United States, or obligations
guaranteed by the United States, obligations of certain federal agencies and instrumentalities, including
U.S. dollar-denominated deposits in commercial banks which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or fully collateralized by the foregoing, and public housing bonds or
project notes issued by public housing authorities annual contribution contracts with the United States
or by requisition or payment agreement with the United States.

3D1 had no non-cash investing activities during 2013 or 2012.

The following is a supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash Paid For June 30, June 30,
Interest During the Year 2013 2012
Expensed $ 19,331,456 $ 18,254,771
Capitalized 1,957,098 2,682,908
Total $ 21,288,554 3 20,937 677

Investment Poiicy

General Policy

It is the policy of SD1 to invest public funds in a manner that will provide the highest investment return
with the maximum security of principal while meeting the daily cash flow demands of SD1 and
conforming to all state statutes and SD1 regulations governing the investments of public funds.

Authorized Investment Instruments

1. Obligations of the United States and of its agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations

- subject to repurchase agreements, provided that delivery of these obligations subject to
repurchase agreements is taken either directly or through an authorized custodian.

2. Obligations and contracts for future delivery or purchase of obligations backed by the full faith
and credit of the United States or a United States government agency. '

3. Obligations of any corporation of the United States government agency.

4. Certificates of deposit issued by, or other interest-bearing accounts of, any bank savings and
loan institution which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or similar entity
or which are collateralized, to the extent uninsured, by any obligations permitted by Section
41.240(4) of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. ‘
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Deposits and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, SD1’'s
deposits may not be returned. SD1 maintains deposits with financial institutions insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As allowed by law, the depository bank should pledge securities
along with FDIC insurance at least equal to the amount on deposit at all times. As of June 30, 2013 and
2012, the SD1’s deposits were entirely insured and/or collateralized with securities held by the financial
institutions on the SB1's behalf and the FDIC insurance.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, SD1 will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in possession of an outside party. SD1 had custodial credit risk at June 30, 2013 and 2012 of
$82,613,373 and $80,747,604 respectively. The related securities totaling this amount are uninsured,
unregistered securities held by the counterparty, or its trust department or agent but not in the entity’s
name.

Credit Risk — Investments SD1’s investments are subject to minimal credit risk because they are
invested in Federal Agency securities which are generally considered free of default risk due to the
perceived stability of the U.S. Government.

Accounts Receivable - Customers

During 2009, SD1 changed to a monthly billing procedure, replacing a quarterly cycled procedure.
When meter readings are delayed, bills are rendered based on estimated meter readings to promote
consistency of sewer service revenue. Accounts receivable and related sewer service revenue are
recorded when billed. The financial statements include an estimate for unbilled sewer and storm water
charges of $9,190,400 and $9,615,400 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Accounts receivable are stated at their contractual outstanding balances, net of any allowance for
doubtful accounts. Accounts are considered past due if any portion of an account has not been paid in
full within the contractual terms of the account. SD1 begins to assess its ability to collect receivables
that are over 90 days past due and provides for an adequate allowance for doubtful accounts based on
the SD1’s collection history, the financial stability and recerit payment history of the customer, and other
pertinent factors. Based on these criteria, the SD1 has estimated no allowance for doubtful accounts at
June 30, 2013 and 2012 because management expects no material losses. '

Fixed Assels

Fixed assets are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase or construction and are capitalized
annually, at cost, in the fixed asset accounts. These accounts have been adjusted each year for
additions and deletions. Depreciation of fixed assets was not recognized by SD1 prior to July 31, 1979;
however, SD1 established accumulated depreciation allowances for depreciable assets as of August 1,
1979. The book values of fixed assets are currently depreciated on a straight-line basis at rates
comparable to those acceptable for waste water utilities. SD1 has developed a property control system.
and maintains detailed records on all fixed assets. '
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The depreciable life for each asset type is as follows:

Asset Type Depreciable Life (Years)

Computer equipment/software ' 3

Vehicles 5
Furniture, small equipment 10

Pump station equipment 10
Treatment and disposal eguipment 35

Storm water assets 25-50
Collection system 50
Buildings 50

The following tables provide a summary of fixed asset balances, additions, and retirements for the year
ended June 30, 2013 for both the Sanitation and the Storm Water funds:

Sanitation Fund Balance at Balance at
: June 30, June 30,
Asset Type 2012 Additions Retirements 2013
Collection system $ 623,052,699 $ 28,141,204 $ (2,010,111) $ 649,183,792
Pumiping sysiem 74,563,508 10,976,005 (461,656) 85,077,857
Treatment and disposal 225,901,841 2,219,543 (249,994) 227,871,380
General plant and equipment 75,527,421 1,542,614 (299,092) 76,770,943
Software model development 15,867,050 - - 15,967,050
Construction in progress - sanitation 46,654,791 37,498,475 (43,339,065) 40,814,200
Subtotal 1,081,667,310 80,377,841 (46,359,919) 1,095,685,232
Less: accumulated depreciation (239,908,381) {25,360,250) 1,714,119 {263,554,552)
Fixed Assets, Net $ 821,758,929 $ 55,017,551 § (44,645,800) §$ 832,130,680
Storm Water Fund ) Balance at Balance at
June 30, June 30,
Asset Type " 2012 Additions Retirements : 2013
Land ' $ 409728 § 57,281 $ = $ 466,989
Vehicles - 25,027 - 25,027
Equipment - 31,068 - 31,088
Storm water collection system 356,814,655 18,963,732 (818,600) 374,959,787
Software model development 5,645,160 - - 5,645,160
Construction in progress - storm water 3,460,048 2,968,610 {5,408,082) - 1,019,566
Subtotal 356,329,591 - 22,045,698 (6,227,692) 382,147,597
Less: accumulated depreciation {38,251,461) {14,885,552) 94,714 (53,042,299)
Fixed Assets, Net $ 328,078,130 $ 7,160,146 § (6,132,978) $ 329,105,208
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Compensated Absences

Employees of SD1 are entitled to paid vacation depending on length of service and other factors. The
amounts recorded for accumulated vacation for the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $953,824
and $843,612, respectively. Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 43 requires accrued
employee vacation benefits to be recorded in the financial statements. Sick leave is not accrued
because it does not vest, employees are not paid for any sick leave balance at termination of
employment except at retirement.

Restricted Net Assets

In conformity with the Uniform System of Accounts for Class A Sewer Utilities and the Trust Incentive
dated April 1, 1998, the balance of accounts restricted for specific purposes have been segregated as
restricted net assets.

NOTE 3 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

Assessments and Improvement Notes

SD1 has, at the request of homeowners, extended sanitary sewer service into existing areas for which
there was no previous service. SD1 paid the initial cost of this construction, and assessed the
homeowners to recover the cost of construction. The following is a schedule of assessments and
improvements outstanding to SD1 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

2013 : 2012
Assessments $ 1,644,649 $.1,738,719
tmprovement notes 5,130 5443
Total $ 1,649,779 $ 1,744,162

NOTE 4 - BONDS PAYABLE

Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds, Series 2010D

On December 28, 2010, bonds in the total amount of $40,905,000 were issued under authority of
applicable Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed
and adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $40,905,000 and $40,905,000, respectively. These bonds qualify for a federal
reimbursement of interest expense between 43-45% of the bi-annual interest expense. The first
principal payment will not be made until 2025.

The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2010D Bonds, together with other available funds, were used
to (1) provide funds to meet certain capital construction costs of SD1, (2) fund the Debt Service
Reserve Fund, and (3) pay the necessary costs and expenses incident to the issuance and delivery of
the Series 2010D Bonds.

36




SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Build America Bonds, Series 2010C

On December 28, 2010, bonds in the total amount of $19,600,000 were issued under authority of
applicable Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed
and adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $16,855,000 and $18,230,000, respectively. These bonds qualify for a federal
reimbursement of interest expense of 35% of the bi-annual interest expense.

The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2010C Bonds, together with other available funds, were used
to (1) provide funds to meet certain capital construction costs of SD1, (2) fund the Debt Service
Reserve Fund, and (3) pay the necessary costs and expenses incident to the issuance and delivery of
the Series 2010C Bonds.

Refunding Bonds, Series 20108

On September 23, 2010, bonds in the total amount of $42,310,000 were issued under authority of
applicable Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed
and adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $40,420,000 and $42,005,000, respectively.

The proceeds from the sale of the Serics 2010B Bonds, were used to defease $42,250,000 of the
2001A Bonds and to pay the necessary costs and expenses incident to the issuance and delivery of the
Series 2010B Bonds.

Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A

On May 1, 2010, bonds in the total amount of $75,000,000 were issued under authority of applicable
Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed and
adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $71,745,000 and $73,380,000, respectively. These bonds qualify for a federat
reimbursement of interest expense of 35% of the bi-annuat interest expense.

The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2010A Bonds, together with other available funds, were used
to (1) provide funds to meet certain capital construction costs of SD1, (2) fund the Debt Service
Reserve Fund, and (3) pay the necessary costs and expenses incident to the issuance and delivery of
the Series 2010A Bonds." ' ‘

Revenue Bonds, Series 2009

On August 1, 2009, revenue bonds in the total amount of $54,880,000 were issued under authority of
applicable Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed
and adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $51,575,000 and $52,695,000, respectively. These bonds qualify for a federal
reimbursement of interest expense of 35% of the bi-annual interest expense.

The proceeds for the sale of the Series 2009 Bonds, together with other available funds, are being used
(1) to provide funds to meet certain capital construction costs of SD1, (2) to fund the Debt Service
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Reserve Fund, and (3) to pay the necessary costs and expenses incident to the issuance and delivery
of the Series 2009 Bonds.

Revenue Bonds, Series 2007

On December 1, 2007, bonds in the total amount of $102,000,000 were issued under authority of
applicable Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed
and adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $96,950,000 and $98,085,000, respectively.

The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2007 Bonds, together with other available funds, were used to
(1) provide funds to meet certain capital construction costs of SD1, (2) fund the Debt Service Reserve
Fund, and (3) pay the necessary costs and expenses incident to the issuance and delivery of the Series
2007 Bonds.

Revenue Bonds, Series 2006

In October 2006, bonds in the total amount of $50,000,000 were issued under authority of applicable
Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed and
adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $45,220,000 and $46,225,000, respectively.

The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2006 Bonds, together with other available funds, were used to
(1) provide funds to meet certain capital construction costs of SD1, (2) fund the Debt Service Reserve
Fund, and (3) pay the necessary costs and expenses incident to the issuance and delivery of the Series
2006 Bonds.

Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A

In June 2005, bonds in the total amount of $35,175,000 were issued under authority of applicable
Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed and
adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. Balances outstanding as of June 30,
2013 and 2012 were $22,245,000 and $25,475,000, respectively.

The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2005A Bonds, together with other available funds, were used
to (1) advance refund a portion of the outstanding Series 1998A bonds (being the Series 1998A Bonds
maturing on August 1 in the years 2009 through 2018) and (2) pay the necessary costs and expenses
incident to the issuance and delivery of the Series 2005A Bonds.

Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A

During February 2001, bonds in the total amount of $52,685,000 were issued under authority of
applicable Kentucky Revised Statutes and in accordance with authorized bond resolutions duly passed
and adopted by the Board of Directors of Sanitation District No. 1. On September 23, 2010, Series
2010B Refunding Bonds were issued in the amount of $42,310,000 to defease $42,250,000 of the
outstanding balance of the Series 2001A bond. The residual balance was paid in full during fiscal year
2012,
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The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2001A Bonds, together with other available funds, were used
to pay the costs of SD1's Capital Improvement Program, including reimbursing SD1 for prior capital
expenditures, to make provisions for underwriting discount and original issue discount, to fund the
Aggregate Debt Service Reserve Requirement and to pay the necessary costs and expenses incident
to the issuance and delivery of the Series 2001A Bonds.

The changes in outstanding debt for the year ended June 30, 2013 were:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, June 30,

. Bond Series 2012 Additions Payments 2013
2001A $ - $ - $ - -
2005A 25,475,000 (3;230,000) 22,245 000

2008 46,255,000 - {1,035,000) 45,220,000
2007 98,085,000 - (1,135,000) 96,950,000
2009 52,695,000 - (1,120,000) 51,575,000
2010A 73,380,000 (1,635,000) 71,745,000
20108 42,005,000 - {1,585,000) 40,420,000
2010C 18,230,000 - {1,375,000) 16,855,000
2010D 40,905,000 - 40,805,000
Totals $ 397,030,000 % - § (11,115,000 $ 385,915,000

Interest rates range from 4.0% to 5.0% on all bonds.

The debt service to maturity for Revenue/Refunding Bonds Payable, Series 2001A, 2005A, 2006, 2007,
2009, 2010A, 2010B, 2010C, and 2010D is as follows:

$ 385,915,000

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 11,430,000 16,021,500 $ 30,451,500
2015 11,770,000 18,647,194 30,417,194
2016 12,140,000 18,229,067 30,369,067
2017 12,545,000 17,769,846 30,314,848
2018 12,980,000 17,275,032 30,255,032

2019-2023 60,110,000 78,432,142 138,542,142

2024-2028 70,005,000 63,245,965 133,250,965

2029-2033 83,195,000 43,484,552 126,679,552

2034-2038 84,890,000 20,654,329 105,544,329

2039-2041 26,850,000 2,423,287 29,273,287
Total $ 299,182,914

$ 685,097,914

39

All bonds are secured by SD1 assets or future SD1 revenues.



SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE 5 - NOTES PAYAELE

Eastern Regional Waste Water Reclamation Facility

SD1 partnered with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority to fund construction of the Eastern Regional
Wastewater Reclamation Facility (ERWRF). This Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Loan bears an
interest rate of 3.0% with interest-only payments due until completion, with final maturity due 20 years
after completion. Construction on the plant was complete in June 2008. The outstanding loan
balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $25,352,943 and $26,730,420, respectively.

Western Regional Waste Water Reclamation Facility

During the year ended June 30, 2009, SD1 partnered with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority to fund
construction of the Western Regional Wastewater Reclamation Facility (WRWRF). This Kentucky
Infrastructure Authority Loan bears an interest rate of 1.0% with interest-only payments due until
completion, with final maturity due 20 years after completion. Construction on the plant began in
February 2009 and was completed in fiscal year 2012. The outstanding loan balances at June 30, 2013
and 2012 were $69,403,566 and $68,204,558, respectively.

Dry Creek Waste Water Treatment Plant

During fiscal years 2011 and 2010, SD1 secured funding from KIA for a new clarifier at the Dry Creek
Plant Treatment Plant. These funds are drawn as part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund and carry a 2.0%
interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were
$4,619,419 and $4,823,925, respectively.

Sunnybrook Sewer System

During fiscal year 2011, SD1 secured funding from KIA for new sewer lines. These funds are drawn as
part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding
loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $4,890,270 and $5,121,564, respectively.

Southfork Gunpowder Creek

During fiscal year 2011, SD1 secured funding from KIA for new sewer lines. These funds are drawn as
part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding
loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $12,735,256 and $12,573,589, respectively.

Frogtown Interceptor

During fiscal yéar 2011, SD1 secured funding from KIA for new sewer lines. These funds are drawn as
part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding
loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $4,630,138 and $4,726,828, respectively.
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Turkevfoot/industrial Road

During fiscal year 2011, SD1 secured funding from KIA for new sewer lines. These funds are drawn as
part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding
loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $2,149,345 and $1 959,435, respectively.

Narrows Road Diversion

During fiscal year 2011, SD1 secured funding from KIA for new sewer lines. These funds are drawn as
part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding
loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $8,069,123 and $7.131,452, respectively.

Dry Creek Head Works/Hydraulics

During fiscal year 2012, SD1 secured funding from KIA for headwork/hydrauiics reconfiguration at the
Dry Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant. These funds are drawn as part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund
and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding loan balances at June 30, 2013
and 2012 were $12,962,625 and $3,393,948, respectively.

Lakeview, Kentucky Aire, Church Street

During fiscal year 2013, SD1 secured funding from KIA for combined sewer overfiow reduction, pump
station elimination and pump station replacement. These funds are drawn as part of KIA Revolving
Loan Fund and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding loan balances at June
30, 2013 and 2012 were $5,242,802 and $0, respectively.

Lakeside Park, Vernon Lane

During fiscal year 2013, SD1 secured funding from KIA for Lakeside Park sewer rehabilitation and
Vernon Lane removal of sewer inflow and infiltration. These funds are drawn as part of KIA Revolving
Loan Fund and carry a 2.0% interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding loan balances at June
30, 2013 and 2012 were $81,320 and $0, respectively.

Wolpert Force Main

During fiscal year 2013, SD1 secured funding from KiA for the Wolpert pump station rehabilitation and
force main project. These funds are drawn as part of KIA Revolving Loan Fund and carry a 2.0%
interest rate and 20 year maturity. The outstanding loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were
$834,432 and $0, respectively. '

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act — Minor Infrastructure Improvements

During fiscal years 2011 and 2010, SD1 secured funding from KIA, as part of the federai government'’s
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, for severai smaller infrastructure improvement projects.
These projects are funded based upon 52,1% principal forgiveness, and a 2.0% interest rate and a 20
year maturity. The projects include the Banklick wetlands project, the regional bio-retention facility, the
Banklick Creek stabilization project, and the terraced reforestation of an interstate right-of-way. The
outstanding loan balances at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $1,744,028 and $1,847,283, respectively.
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The changes in outstanding Kentubky Infrastructure Authority debt for the year ended June 30, 2013
were as follows:

Balance at Balance at
June 30 June 30

Project 2012 Additions Paymeénts 2013

Eastern Regional Wastewater Facility $ 26,730,420 3 - $ (1,377,477) $ 25,352,943
Westemn Regional Wastewater Facility 68,204,558 1,199,009 - 69,403,567
Dry Creek clarifier 4,823,925 - (204,506) 4,619,419
Sunnybrook sewer 5,121,564 - (231,294) 4,890,270
South Fork Gunpowder Creek 12,573,589 181,667 - 12,735,256
Frogtown interceptor 4,726,828 - (96,690) 4,630,138
Turkeyfoot - Industrial Road 1,959,435 189,910 - 2,149,345
Narrows Road diverter 7,131,452 937,671 - 8,069,123
Dry Creek headworks/hydraulics 3,393,948 9,568,676 - 12,962,624
Lakeview, Kentucky Aire, Church St. - 5,242,802 - 5,242 802
Lakeside Park, Vernon Lane - 81,320 - 81,320
Wolpert force main - 851,857 (17,425) 834,432
Banklick wetlands 644,529 = (27,324) 617,205
Regional bio-retention facility 687,771 - (30,084) 657,687
Banklick Creek stabilization 177,478 - (8.015) 169,463
Terraced right-of-way 399,601 (16,430} 383,171

Totals § 136,575,098  § 18,232,912 $ (2,009,245) $ 152,798,765

The debt service to maturities for the sixteen KIA Notes Payable, with drawn balances outstanding at
June 30, 2013 only, is as follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest & Fees Total
2014 $ 7,008,249 § 2,883,175 $ 9,891,424
2015 7,133,524 2,745,648 9,879,172
2018 7,261,476 2,605,604 9,867,080
2017 7,392,165 2,462,615 9,854,780
2018 7,525,661 2,316,606 9,842,267
2019-2023 - 39,733,813 9,282,052 49,015,865
2024-2028 42,448,826 - 5,134,937 47,683,763
2029-2033 . 34,295,051 1,561,626 35,856,677

Totals $ 152,798,765 $ 28,992,263 $ 181,791,028

All KIA notes are secured by SD1 assets or future SD1 revenues.

NOTE 6 — INTERFUND BALANCES

The stormwater fund transferred $0 and $1 973,008 to the sanitation fund during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These transfers reflect the amount of stormwater funds allocated

to capital projects that have both a sanitary and a stormwater component. The sanitation owed the
stormwater fund $11,461,121 and $7,302,667 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN

SD1 employees who work at least 100 hours per month participate in the County Employees
Retirement System (CERS). Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute 61.645, the Board of
Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems administers the CERS. The plan issues separate financial
statements, which may be obtained by request from Kentucky Retirement Systems, 1260 Louisville
Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601.

Plan Description — CERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers
substantially ail regular full-time members employed in positions of each county and school board, and
any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in the system. An entity that elects to
to participate in CERS may not voluntarily withdraw from the system. The plan provides for retirement,
disability, and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of
plan members under certain circumstances. Cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) are provided at the
discretion of the state legisiature.

Non-hazardous Contributions — For the year ended June 30, 2013, plan members were required to
contribute 5% of their annual creditable compensation. Participating empioyers were required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.565(3), normal
contribution and past service contribution rates shall be determined by the Board on the basis of an
annual valuation iast proceeding ihe July i of a new biennium. The Board may amend contribution
rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a
subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements
determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the Board. The actuarially determined rate
set by the Board for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was 19.55% and 18.96%, respectively of
creditable compensation. Administrative costs of CERS are financed through employer contributions
and investment earnings.

SD1 has no Hazardous duty contributors.

The required contribution and the actual percentage contributed by SD1 for the current and previous
five years is as follows:

Year ending Required Percentage

June 30, Contribution Contributed
2013 $ 2,503,650 100%
2012 2,248,219 100%
2011 1,922,390 100%.
2010 1,848,372 100%
2009 1,546,901 100%
2008 1,683,721 100%
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NOTE 8 - LESSOR AGREEMENT

On July 1, 2007, SD1 renewed its agreement to lease 15,000 square feet of its building to the Kenton
County Board of Education. The original agreed-upon term of the lease was July 1, 2007 until July 1,
2012. There was an option to renew at the end of the full term for an additional five years. The Board of
Education did renew its lease with SD1 for a period from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2017. Future
minimum rentals to be received are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Lease Revenue
2014 3 87,600
2015 87,600
2016 87,600 -
2017 87,600
Totals 3 350,400

NOTE 9 — REIMBURSEMENT COMMITMENTS

SD1 has entered into interlocal agreements, whereby cities can apply for reimbursement of qualified
expenses incurred to accomplish required storm water improvements. There were 10 additional
projects approved for funding in the amount of $570,008 as of June 30, 2013 compared to 16 additional
projects approved for funding in the amount of 586,526 as of June 30, 2012.

SD1 has also partnered with communities, organizations, and businesses to increase the utilization of
‘green infrastructure”. Through Green Initiative Project Partnerships (GriPP), SD1 expended $53,540
and $125,594 in the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

NOTE 10 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

SD1 receives all of its service revenues from customers in the three northern counties of Kentucky and
is not dependent upon one customer, industry, or commercial user.

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCIES

Effective June 22, 1999, the Board of Directors approved a resolution to indemnify each officer and
director all expenses incurred in connection with their performance of duties and responsibilities
associated with their membership with SD1. This includes claims not covered by SD1’s Directors and
Officers Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance. SD1 offers a Health Reimbursement Account to full
time eligible employees for out of pocket healthcare costs. SD1 annually credits various amounts to the
accounts of eligible employees based on their participation in wellness programs. Once credited, the
contributions become available for participants for uses allowed by the plan during their employment
and retirement. Unspent balances are available to participants for allowable expenditures unless they
cease employment with SD1 before their normal retirement date. Accordingly, a liability of $466,886
and $424,472 have been recorded in the accompanying financial statements which are management’s
estimate of the unspent balances as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, that is likely to be paid in
future periods.
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NOTE 12 - LITIGATION

In October 2005, SD1 announced that it had reached a comprehensive settlement with the Kentucky
Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to
address sewer overflows and improve water quality in Northern Kentucky. The settiement is contained
in a Consent Decree, which was logged with the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky
on October 7, 2005. The Consent Decree establishes a 20-year plan to address combined sewer
overflows (CSOs) consistent with U.S. EPA’s 1994 CSO control policy, and separate sanitary sewer
overflows (SSOs) consistent with the Clean Water Act. SD1 will implement the requirements of the
Decree through a unique watershed approach, which will allow SD1 to comprehensively assess the
cumulative impacts of all pollution sources on receiving waters. This holistic approach will lead to more
efficient and cost-effective solutions for the improvement of water quality. The Consent Decree required
SD1 to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $476,400, which was paid during the year ended June 30,
2006, and to expend $636,000 for supplemental environmental projects. It is estimated that fuil
implementation of the Decree will cost approximately $1.2 billion over the next 20 years. The Consent
Decree was entered by the Court in April 2007 and is final and binding upon all parties.

SD1 is involved in twenty-three separate lawsuits relating to matters arising in the normal course of
business. SD1 intends to aggressively defend each of these suits, and financial contingencies that
could be awarded in fifteen of the lawsuits are covered, at least in part, by SD1’s insurance company.

SD1 is a party to a wrongful termination suit where petitioner has made claims of retaliatory
constructive discharge, intentional infliction of emotional distress, and violation of the Kentucky
Whistieblower Act. The court has ruled in favor of SD1 and the case is currently under appeal.

SD1 is a party to a breach of contract suit involving two other parties in the construction of a storm
water pipe as part of a development project in the City of Dayton, Kentucky. Motion to dismiss has
been granted to SD1 and the appeals court affirmed the decision. The case is now pending review by
the Kentucky Supreme Court.

On August 26, 2009, two individuals challenged the Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Efimination System
permit issued by the Kentucky Division of Water for SD1’s new Western Regional Wastewater
Reclamation Facility (WRWRF). The KPDES permit was issued July 22, 2009, and authorizes the
discharge of wastewater from the WRWRF to the Ohio River. Petitioners contend that the permit is not
sufficiently protective of water. quality and, therefore, more stringent limitations should be imposed in
the permit, including limitations for nitrogen and phosphorus, which are not currently limited. The
Secretary of the Kentucky Energy and Environment Cabinet issued a Final Order upholding the KPDES
permit in its entirety. SD1 and the Energy and Environment Cabinet are vigorously defending the
Secretary’s Final Order before the court. If Petitioners prevail, additional treatment processes could be
required to be installed and operated at the WRWRF, which could cost over $50 million.

SD7's interiocal agreement pertaining to the transfer and maintenance of the region's storm water
assets was challenged by the City of Cold Spring. The City contended that SD1 breached the interlocal
agreement by limiting the amount of maintenance and service it provided for above ground assets. SD1
vigorously defended the agreement. The Court ruled that the City may opt out and terminate the 2003
interlocal agreement; however, it upheld SD1's interpretation of the Storm Water Infrastructure Transfer
Agreement and found that SD1 had not breached the agreement. The City terminated the interlocal
agreement and filed another declaratory judgment action relating to the storm water surcharge. The
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City and SD1 reached a settlement that allowed the City to opt out of SD1's storm water program and
manage its own storm water program as of October 1, 2013.

The owner of a shopping center development has claimed that storm water lines running through its
property should be maintained by SD1. SD1 has denied this claim and the shopping center owner has

filed suit in Campbell County Circuit court. The precedent set by a judgment against SD1 in this case
could potentially result in significant-financial contingencies against SD1 in the future.

NOTE 13 — INSURANCE IN FORCE

SD1 has the following insurance policies in force during fiscal years 2013 and 2012:

Type of Amount of Coverage
Coverage 2013 2012
Property- Buildings, pump stations, machinery $ 203,428,015 $ 236,417,088
Earthquake 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equipment breakdown 50,000,000 50,000,000
General liability, aggregate 26,000,000 26,000,000
Public entity management liability 26,000,000 26,000,000
Vehicles 26,000,000 26,000,000
Emvironmental impaiment 25,000,000 25,000,000
Inland marine (scheduled equipment) 5,463,413 5,144,127
Flood 5,000,000 5,000,000
Pipeline policy 5,000,000 5,000,000
Employer's liability 4,000,000 4,000,000
Crime - employee dishonesty 3,000,000 3,000,000
Cyber liability 3,000,000 3,000,000
Property- Building contents 2,172,801 2,309,339
EDP-hardware, software 1,350,000 1,350,000
Telecommunications-equipment 231,000 231,000
Telecommunications-tower 80,000 80,000
Electronic vandalism 50,000 50,000
Public official bonds {per board member) 50,000 50,000

NOTE 14 — RECLASSIFICATION IN PRIOR YEAR STATEMENTS

SD1 management has reclassified the position of several accounts on the 2012 Balance Sheet due to
the requirements of GASB 63 (See NOTE 2) which requires accounting for deferred refunding costs on
defeased bonds to be held in a section titled Deferred Outflow of Resources. This reclassification has a
zero net effect on the ending balances of the Balance Sheet.

The 2012 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position has been adjusted due to
the requirements of GASB 65 (See NOTE 2) which disallows the amortization of bond issuance costs
over the life of the bond. The Statement requires that all accounts be adjusted retroactively to the
earliest period disclosed. Therefore, a prior period adjustment, reducing the net position by
$3,629,849, has been recorded; as if the bond issuance costs were expensed at the date the costs
were incurred.
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NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated events through November 22, 2013, the date on which the financial

statements were available for issue. Sanitation District No. 1 did not have any events subsequent to
June 30, 2013 through November 22, 2013 to disclose.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

GENERAL REVENUES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Sewer service $ 71,270,000 70,416,460 $ (853,540)
Storm water charges 11,580,000 11,751,183 161,183
Surcharges 2,515,000 3,146,055 631,055
Capacity connection fees 1,500,000 2,015,177 515,177
Penalties 1,625,000 1,564,611 39,611
Fines 16,000 17,163 1,163
Inspections 52,000 69,682 17,682
Permits 190,000 325,815 135,615
Project reimbursements 50,000 68,321 18,321
Contractual services 150,000 125,689 (24,311)
Sludge hauling 200,000 120,776 {79,224)
Bad debt recoveries 20,000 35,392 15,392
Other revenues 120,000 50,993 (69,007)
Total General Revenue $ 89,198,000 89,707,117 3 509,117
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

GENERAL REVENUES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Sewer service

BOD surcharges

Storm water charges
Penalties

Bad debt recoveries
Sludge hauling
Capacity connection fees
Inspections

Permits

Fines

Contractual services
Project reimbursements
Other income

Total General Revenue
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Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$ 63,900,000 $ 65,711,342 $ 1,811,342
4,030,000 2,658,388 (1,371,602)
11,100,000 11,388,734 288,734
1,500,000 1,417,136 (82,864)
40,000 19,097 (20,903)
162,000 147,409 (14,581)
2,000,000 1,592,289 (407,711)
33,000 69,300 36,300
280,000 173,668 (106,332)
10,000 14,250 4,250
150,000 141,038 (8,962)
50,000 549,573 499 579
115,000 69,044 (45,956)
$ 83,370,000 $ 83,951,284 3 581,284




SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -
OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Expenses
Dry Creek Treatment Plant Operations
Salaries and wages
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Professional and contracted services
Postage
Office and operating supplies
Travel, training and certification
Contract labor - building maintenance
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Subscriptions
Electric and gas
Chemicals
Fuel oil
Telephone and radio
Water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Maintenance material - plant equipment
Sludge and grit removal
Safety equipment expense
Rental |

Total Dry Creek Treatment Plant Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 2,258,870 $ 2,286,578 3 (27,708)
516,072 687,950 (171,878)
441,609 413,173 28,436
172,804 162,689 10,115
49,740 40,929 8,811
(400,000} {76,876) (323,124)
127,455 117,385 10,070
150,000 120,297 29,703
5,000 3,487 1,513
163,620 170,998 (7,378)
21,785 19,653 2,132
5,000 19,904 (14,904)
72,000 71,772 228
1,000 1,857 (857)
1,200,000 1,026,405 173,595
2,391,480 1,215,987 1,175,493
73,200 98,224 (25,024)
40,000 25,023 14,977
64,000 54,675 9,325
160,000 112,809 47 191
100,000 55,032 44,968
200,000 218,143 (18,143)
850,701 656,070 194,631
20,000 13,267 8,733
8,000 6,255 1,745
8,692,336 7,521,686 1,170,650
(Continued to next page)
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Expenses 7
Eastern Regional Reclamation Facility
Salaries and wages :
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Professional and contracted services
Postage
Office and operating supplies
Travel, training and certification
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Subscriptions
Electric and gas
Chemicals
Fuel oil
Teiephone and radio
Water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Maintenance material - plant equipment
Sludge and grit removal
Safety equipment expense
Rental

Total Eastern Regional Facility Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual __(Unfavorable)
$ 505,570 $ 420,969 $ . 84,601 -
113,971 151,667 (37,696)
08,839 79,490 19,349
38,678 30,010 8,666
11,715 8,191 3,524
(5,000) {(306,527) 301,527
42,415 41,781 634
47,250 33,877 13,373
200 - 200
24,060 30,566 (6,506)
5,000 1,850 3,150
15,000 10,915 4,085
200 163 37
360,000 340,996 19,004
110,000 95,794 14,206
10,000 - 10,000
46,000 29,287 16,713
8,000 4774 3,226
35,000 31,647 3,353
45,000 25,738 19,261
80,000 60,966 29,034
134,316 91,184 43,132
5,000 2,872 2,128
3,000 - 3,000
1,744,212 1,186,211 558,001
(Continued to next page)
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Expenses
Western Regional Reclamation Facility

Salaries and wages
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Professional and contracted services
Postage
Office and operating supplies
Travel, training and certification

Operating maintenance - building grounds

Subscriptions

Contract labor - building maintenance
Electric and gas

Chemicals

Fuel oil

Telephone and radio

Water

Vehicle fuels

Auto and truck expense

Maintenance material - plant equipment
Sludge and grit removal

Safety equipment expense

Rental

Total Western Regional Facility Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 570,315 $ 612,800 $ (42,485)
147,742 190,376 (42,634)
111,497 116,341 {4,844)
43,629 43,306 323
13,693 10,944 2,749
(30,000) - (30,000)
66,929 56,261 10,668
65,000 37,456 27,544
500 447 53
56,500 44,088 12,412
5,000 2,327 2,673
35,000 35,807 (807)
300 273 27
2,000 - 2,000
972,627 945,690 28,937
114,800 77,330 37,470
2,000 2,269 (269)
47,500 24742 22,758
8,000 1,704 6,296
25,000 3,631 21,469
25,000 4,233 20,767
90,000 96,742 (6,742)
235,057 453,816 {218,759)
20,000 16,357 3,643
3,000 416 2,584
2,631,089 2,777,256 {146,167)
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Expenses
Collection System

Salaries and wages .
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Unemployment taxes
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Insurance claims
Professionai and contracted services
Postage
Office and operating supplies
Travel, training and certification
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Subscriptions
Telephone and radio
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Sludge and grit removal
Mzaintenance material - collection systems
Safety equipment expense
Rental
Private laterai 50/50 program

Total Collection System Expenses

Varlance
Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)
$ 3,167,855 $ 3,170,217 $ (2,362)
789,843 1,046,193 (256,350)

619,316 606,474 12,842

242,341 224,878 17,463

73,535 56,326 17,209
- 465 (465)
(1,843,278) (1,308,823) (534,455)

218,001 207,921 10,080

37,500 13,647 23,853
1,072,970 1,221,826 {148,856)
4,800 4,086 714
21,680 39,733 {18,043)
27,700 32,265 (4,565)
- 175 (175)

500 459 41

40,376 28,444 11,932
300,800 365,879 (85,079)

325,200 314,829 10,271
45,000 48,354 (1,354)
283,634 572,745 {289,111).
12,450 37,691 (25,241)
5,000 5,987 {987)

50,000 2,500 47 500
5,495,233 6,690,371 (1,195,138)

(Continued to next page)
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Variance
Expenses Favorable
Pump Stations/Field Tech Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Salaries and wages 3 663,170 $ 685,220 $ (22,050)
Medical and dental self-insured plan 169,142 203,872 (34,730)
Pensicn plan 129,650 125,659 3,991
Payroll taxes 50,733 48,047 1,786
Employee benefits 17,465 13,225 4,240
Unempleyment taxes 7,500 - 7,500
Credits charged to capital projects (80,000) (72,085) (7,915)
Insurance and bond 121,237 108,702 12,535
Professional and contracted services 72,305 76,427 {4,122)
Postage 1,000 485 515
Office and operating supplies 28,440 24,046 4,394
Travel, training and certification 10,000 6,224 3,776
Contract labor - building maintenance 500 - 500
Operating maintenance - building grounds 25,000 17,456 7,544
Subscriptions 200 - 200
Electric and gas 1,900,000 1,682,598 217,404
Chemicals 1,333,277 1,622,295 (289,018)
Fuel ol 20,000 20,155 ~ (155)
Telephone and radio 53,640 48,388 5,252
Water 22,000 21,754 248
Vehicle fuels 35,000 37,003 (2,003)
Auto and fruck expense 35,000 32,374 2,626
Sludge and grit removal 9,000 3,472 5528
Operating Maintenance - pump stations 200,000 161,018 38,982
Safety equipment expense 12,000 8,963 3,037
Rental 45,000 34,003 10,997
Total Pump Stations/Field Tech Expenses 4,881,259 4,910,199 {28,940)
(Continued to next page)
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Variance
Expenses Favorable
Engineering Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Salaries and wages _ $ 1,563,087 $ 1,672,966 3 (109,879}
Medical and dental self-insured plan 277,212 348,211 {70,899)
Pension plan 305,583 319,103 (13,520)
Payroll taxes 119,576 117,045 2,531
Employee benefits 24,840 22,783 2,057
Credits charged fo capital projects (1,009,524) {981,283) (28,241)
Insurance and bond 50,270 47,221 3,049
Insurance claims - 10,174 (10,174)
Professional and contracted services 767,500 571,478 196,024
Legal Services 6,300 7,000 (790)
Postage 200 5565 (355)
Office and operating supplies 86,604 31,515 55,089
Training and certification 31,450 26,614 4,836
Subscriptions 56,050 24,943 31,107
Telephone and radio 51,429 6,037 35,392
Vehicle fuels 60,000 39,847 20,153
Auto and truck expense 24,000 18,860 5,140
Safety equipment expense 4,200 3,250 950
Rental - 220 (220)
Inflow and infiltration removal program 100,000 10,549 89,451
Total Engineering Expenses 2,518,777 2,307,176 211,601

(Continued to next page)
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -
OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION
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Variance
Expenses Favorable
Storm Water Program Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Salaries and wages $ 2,559,276 $ 2,280,563 3 278,713
Board of directors 6,544 6,084 : 460
Medical and dental self-insured plan 534,835 675,718 {140,883)
Pensicn plan 500,338 414,180 86,178
Payroll taxes 196,285 161,983 34,302
Employee benefits 49,538 47,418 2,121
Unemployment taxes 1,669 3,501 (1,832)
Credits charged to capital projects (725,824) (460,776) {265,048)
insurance and bond . 27,865 27,612 253
Professional and contracted services 855,950 576,554 279,396
Legal services 114,650 48,610 66,040
Bank services 81,787 91,467 (9,680)
Auditing services 9,348 6,366 2,982
Postage 105,190 103,471 1,719
Office and operating supplies 133,009 107,290 25,719
Training and certification 16,600 15,410 1,190
Operating maintenance - building grounds 65,860 42,043 23,817
Storm water program 85,000 60,808 24,192
Subscriptions 52,800 23,098 29,702
Communications 5,565 2,848 2,717
Legal advertising 1,000 722 278
Electric and gas 34,961 39,145 (4,184)
Telephone and radio 31,917 39,339 (7.422)
Water 3,561 4,259 (698)
Vehicle fuels . 34,300 17,183 17,117
Auto and truck expense 25,000 21,331 3,669
Sludge and grit removal 30,000 - 30,000
Maintenance material - storm water 56,366 113,836 (57,470)
Storm water facilities and features 15,000 4,775 10,225
‘Safety equipment expense 2,000 665 1,335
Green initiative expense 250,000 53,540 196,460
Disconnect/Redirect/Infiltration Program (DRIP) 40,000 1,025 38,975
50/50 storm water projects 75,000 69,969 5,031
Total Storm Water Expenses 5,275,391 4,600,017 675,374
(Continued to next page)
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Expenses

Administration
Salaries and wages
Board of directors
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Unemployment taxes
Credits charged to capital projects
insurance and bond
Insurance claims
Professional and contracted services
Legal services
Bank services
Auditing services
Postage
Office and operating supplies
Training and certification

Operating maintenance - building grounds

Dues and subscriptions
Communications

Legal advertising

Sales tax expense
Electric and gas
Telephone and radio
Water

Vehicle fuels

Auto and truck expense
Safety equipment expense
Rental

Supplemental state environmental projects

Total Administration Expenses

Total Operation, Maintenance,
and Administration Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 2,538,082 $ 2,406,597 $ 129,485
22,856 21,259 1,597
486,432 -489,790 (13,358)
495,804 429,249 66,555
195,758 169,047 26,712
51,380 58,266 (6,886)
5,831 11,801 (6,070)
(7,774) {4,149) (3,625)
152,391 154,863 (2,472)
87,500 142,304 (54,804)
1,192 595 991,383 201,212
290,900 173,058 117,842
285,663 310,702 (25,039)
32,652 22,234 10,418
364,610 360,570 4,040
157,622 215,200 (67,578)
159,725 113,515 46,210
177,640 138,205 39,435
70,530 67,918 2,612
19,435 9,945 9,490
3,750 8,575 (4,825)
- 11,157 (11,157)
108,839 126,239 (17,400)
36,228 78,848 (42,620)
12,439 14,871 {2,432)
6,150 3,581 2,669
3,300 3,088 212
12,100 7,624 4,476
10,000 6,087 3,913
30,000 - - 30,000
7,000,439 6,551,927 448 512
$ 38,238,736 $ 36,544,843 $ 1,663,803 -

Reconciliation of Budget to Actual to Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

General Revenues

Operation, Maintenance and Administration Expenses

Major Repair Expenses

Depreciation

Net Operating Income
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$ 89,707,117
(36,544,843)
(4,495,306)
(40,245,842)

$ 8421125
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenses
Dry Creek Treatment Plant Operations

Salaries and wages
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan '
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Unemployment taxes
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Insurance claims
Professional and contracted services
Postage and shipping
Office and operating supplies
Training, travel, and certification
Contract labor - building maintenance
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Dues and subscriptions
Legal advertising
Electric and gas
Chemicals
Fuel oil
Telephone and radio
Water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Maintenance material - plant equipment
Sludge and grit removal
Safety equipment expense
Rental
SD1 penalties and fines

Total Dry Creck Treatment Plant Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
2,497,000 2,453,215 $ 43,785
556,071 647,863 (91,792)
473,431 427,907 45,524
191,021 175,115 15,906
56,500 55,961 539
16,000 - 16,000
(400,000) (392,803) (7,197)
144,588 127,629 16,959
80,000 144,830 (64,830)
2,000 2,691 (691)
150,000 102,678 47,322
18,240 15,034 3,206
5,000 850 4,150
72,000 65,524 6,476
1,000 713 287
- 206 (208)
1,100,000 1,141,238 {(41,238)
2,550,000 1,759,505 790,495
40,000 75,940 (35,940)
54,200 30,869 23,331
30,000 52,305 (22,305)
140,000 136,199 3,801
100,000 77,154 22,846
190,000 194,325 (4,325)
760,000 927 614 (167,614)
12,300 12,589 (289)
8,000 4,485 3,515
- 2,000 {2,000)
8,847,351 8,241,636 605,715
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenses
Eastern Regional Reclamation Facility

Salaries and wages _

Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan

Payroli taxes

Empioyee benefits

-Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond

Insurance claims

Professional and contracted services
Postage and shipping

Office and operating supplies

Training, travel, and certification
Contract labor - building maintenance
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Duee and subscriptions

Electric and gas

Chemicals

Fuel oil

Telephone and radio

Water

Vehicle fuels

Auto and truck expense

Maintenance material - plant equipment
Sludge and grit removal

Safety equipment expense

Rentai

Total Eastern Regional Facility Expenses

Varlance
Favorable
._Budget_ Actual __{Unfavorable)
3 974,000 $ 364,479 $ 209,521
131,862 135,895 {4,043)
108,830 67,434 41,396
43,911 26,000 17,91
14,100 8,698 5,402
{5,000) (2,045) (2,955)
34,757 36,356 {1,599)
27,0600 12,610 14,380
200 - 200
12,000 11,797 203
6,000 5,392 608
15,000 10,196 4,804
100 157 (57)
340,000 307,327 32,673
100,000 51,997 48,003
12,000 5,764 6,236
46,000 28,970 16,030
8.500 4,818 3,682
30,000 28,534 1,466
35,000 52,150 (17,150)
80,000 72,801 7,188
75,000 88,050 (13,050)
5,350 4,832 518
3,000 78 2,822
1,697,600 1,323,280 374,310
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

|BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -
OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenses
Western Regional Reclamation Facility

Salaries and wages
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
insurance claims
Professional and contracted services
Postage and shipping
Office and operating supplies
Training, travel, and certification
Contract labor - building maintenance
Operating maintenance - buitding grounds
Dues and subscriptions
Electric and gas
Chemicals
Fuel oil
Telephone and radio
Water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Maintenance material - plant equipment
Sludge and grit removal
Safety equipment expense
Rental

Total Western Regional Facility Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
190,800 $ 301,433 3 (110,633)
- 44,546 ' 85,525 (40,978)
36,176 56,368 (20,192)
14,596 21,398 (6.802)
4,600 3,848 752
(5,000} (38,346) 33,346
11,122 15,445 (4,323}
17,000 7,616 9,384
500 - 500
10,000 15,122 (5,122)
10,775 4,124 6,651
2,000 - 2,000
21,000 12,777 8,223
300 - 300
228,300 96,744 131,556
35,000 41,640 (6,640)
7,000 5,607 1,393
2,000 - 2,000
12,000 4,823 7177
12,000 460 11,540
25,000 11,918 13,082
63,000 2,770 60,230
14,000 10,531 3,469
3,000 140 2,860
759,715 659,943 99,772

- {(Continued to next page)
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -
OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenses
Collection System

Salaries and wages
Medical and denfal self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Unemployment taxes
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Insurance claims
Professional and contracted services
Postage
Office and operating supplies
Training, travel, and certification
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Dues and subscriptions
Telephone and radio
Utilities - water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Siudge and grit removal
Maintenance material - collection systems
Safety equipment expense
Rental
Private lateral 50/50 program

Total Collection System Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3,045,393 $ 2,894,065 3 151,328
768,163 885,490 (117,327)
577,406 539,247 38,159
232,973 206,157 26,816
71,337 62,012 9,325
3,146 - 3,146
(2,017,416) (2,173,634) 156,218
194,637 204,833 {10,198)
31,461 3,108 28,355
12,450 483,837 (471,387)
- 3,943 {(3,943)
10,618 10,774 (156)
17,101 14,200 2,901
- 85 (85)
236 284 (48)
19,663 35,825 {16,162)
235,955 308,273 (73,318)
196,629 321,336 (124,707)
45,000 33,850 11,150
300,000 496,291 (196,281
14,197 23,410 (9,213)
5,000 9,467 (4,467)
100,000 32,775 67,225
3,863,049 4,396,626 (632,677)
(Continued to next page)
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenses
Pump Stations/Field Tech

Salaries and wages
Medical and dentat self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Unemployment
Credits charged to capital projects
insurance and bond
Insurance claims . .
Professional and contracted services
Postage and shipping
Office and operating supplies
Training, travel, and ceriification
Contract labor - building maintenance
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Dues and subscriptions
Electric and gas
Chemicals
Fuel oil
Telephone and radio
Water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Sludge and grit removal
Operating Maintenance - plants
Operating Maintenance - pump stations
Safety equipment expense
Rental

Total Pump Stations/Field Tech Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual _ (Unfavorable)
$ . 661,000 653,244 5 7,756
165,116 167,396 (2,280)
125,326 117,116 8,210
50,567 46,737 3,830
17,900 16,016 1,884
- 4,040 (4,040)
(120,000) (64,782) (55,218)
41,708 53,528 (11,820)
- 6,547 (6,547)
70,000 37,181 32,819
1,000 344 656
20,000 2,774 17,226
14,480 2,589 11,891
500 - 500
20,000 18,941 1,059
200 - 200
1,600,000 1,871,235 (271,235)
1,467,000 1,436,042 30,958
15,000 19,916 (4,918)
18,000 31,181 (13,161)
20,000 21,255 {1,255)
35,000 29,834 5,166
35,000 27,469 7,531
6,000 . 6,408 {408)
190,000 171,813 18,187
10,550 5,515 5,035
40,000 42,070 {2,070)
4,504,347 4,724,389 - {220,042)
(Continued to next page)

62




SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -
OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Expenses Favorable
Engineering ~Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Salaries and wages $ 1,477,848 $ 1,615656 $ (137,808)
Medical and dental self-insured plan 266,789 317,573 (50,784)
Pension plan 280,200 282,572 (2,372)
Payroll taxes : 113,056 115,090 (2,034)
Employee benefits 27,025 26,548 477
Unemployment taxes 1,266 - 1,266
Credits charged to capital projects (1,326,322) (1,040,153} (286,169)
Insurance and bond 69,513 63,525 5,988
Insurance claims - - -
Professional and contracted services 75,000 134,166 (59,1686)
Legal Services 1,300 19,283 (17,983)
Office and operating suppiies 15,823 10,230 5,593
Training, travel, and certification 26,305 24213 2,092
Dues and subscriptions 52,000 32,121 19,879
Telephone and radio 15,823 18,515 (2.682)
Vehicle fuels 39,789 45,389 {5,600)
Autc and truck expense 26,527 19,649 6,878
Safety equipment expense 6,361 3,070 3,291
Rental 1,300 - 1,300
Inflow and infiltration removal program - 15,005 (15,005)
Total Engineering Expenses 1,169,603 1,702,452 (532,849)

(Continued to next page)
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenses
Stormwater Program

Salaries and wages
Board of directors
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Unemployment taxes
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Insurance claims
Professional and confracted services
Legal services
Bank services
Auditing services
Office and operating supplies
Postage and shipping
Training, travel, and certification
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Storm water expenses
Dues and subscriptions
Communication expenses
Government affairs
Miscellaneous
Legal advertising
Electric and gas
Telephone and radio
Water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Sludge and grit removal
Operating maintenance - sewers
Safety equipment expense
Disconnect/Redirect/Infiltration Program (DRIP)
Green initiative project partnerships (GrlPP)

Total Stormwater Expenses

Variance
_ Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable})
$ 2,288,660 2,269,456 $ 19,204
5,827 5,377 450
468,626 531,553 (62,927)
433,930 398,935 34,995
175,528 162,683 12,845
47,722 43,320 4,402
4,759 - 4,759
(1,318,833) (1,197,444) (121,389)
123,734 63,992 59,742
26,476 24,983 1,493
385,000 487,013 (102,013)
41,000 47,970 (6,970)
64,414 96,063 (31,648)
7,631 15,750 (8,119)
102,946 99,325 3,621
97,315 89,591 7,724
47,022 34,712 12,310
43,595 66,058 (22,463)
100,000 28,701 71,299
72,640 77,417 (4,777)
4,559 2,806 1,753
14,865 1,227 13,638
1,486 169 1,317
1,586 1,505 81
35,712 34,704 1,008
27,635 42650 (15,015)
3,568 4,388 (820)
88,625 110,109 (21,484)
69,648 100,958 (31,310)
9,607 9,190 417
- 11,240 (11,240)
8,875 9,886 (1,011)
60,000 13,634 46,366
500,000 125,594 374,406
4,044,158 3,813,515 230,643
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL -

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND ADMINISTRATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Expenses

Administration
Salaries and wages
Board of directors
Medical and dental self-insured plan
Pension plan
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Unemployment taxes
Credits charged to capital projects
Insurance and bond
Insurance claims
Professional and contracted services
Legal services
Bank services
Audlting services
Office and operating supplies
Postage and shipping
Traihing, fravel, and certification
Operating maintenance - building grounds
Dues and subscriptions
Miscellaneous
Communications expenses
Government affairs
Legal advertising
Electric and gas
Telephone and radio
Water
Vehicle fuels
Auto and truck expense
Safety equipment expense
Rentals and leases
SD1 penalties and fines
Supplemental/state environmental projects

Totai Administration Expenses

Total Operation, Maintenance,
and Administration Expenses

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual _ {Unfavorable)
$ 2,447,099 $ 2,211,694 $ 235,405
23,573 21,745 1,628
426,337 432,780 {6,443)
463,970 358,639 105,331
189,006 161,675 27,331
51,315 44,848 6,467
12,829 - 12,829
{8,018) (9,469) 1,451
123,733 118,246 5,487
72,563 106,928 (34,365)
836,525 786,719 49,806
206,350 335,348 (128,998)
260,586 281,434 (20,848)
30,869 83,715 (32,846)
246,313 247,904 (1,591)
393,685 358,690 34,995
109,727 68,010 41,717
135,905 233,588 {97,683)
30,288 43,255 (12,967)
6,014 (150) 6,164
18,441 11,359 7,082
60,135 4,962 55,173
6,414 6,091 323
128,288 136,234 {7,948)
53,079 88,689 (35,610)
14,432 17,755 {3,323)
6,078 3,258 2,820
3,608 9,428 (5,820)
5,392 7,083 (1,891)
- 4,847 (4,847)
- 2,550 (2,550)
80,000 561,218 18,782
6,434,536 6,219,073 215,463
$ 31,321,259 $ 31,080,924 3 240,335

Reconciliation of Budget to Actual to Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets:

General Revenues

Operation, Maintenance and Administration Expenses

Major Repalr Expenses
Depreciation
Net Operating Income
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$ 83,951,284
(31,080,924)
(4,912,935)

(39,593,040)

$ 8,364,385




SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal
Federal CFDA Loan
Agency Federal Grantor/Program Title/Project . Number Number Expenditures
EPA Capitalization Grants for clean water -
State Revolving Funds - Passed
through Commonwealth of Kentucky -
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
Western Regional Waste Water 66.458 A08-04 3 688,684
Reclamation Facility
Gunpowder Interceptor A09-06 133,412
Narrows Road Diversion Pump Station A09-09 178,215
Dry Creek Headworks / Hydraulics A10-11 2,150,299
Lakeview, Kentucky Aire, Church St. A11-13 2,168,686
Wolpert Force Main A12-02 702,974
Total Federal Expenditures: $ 6,322,270
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The accompanying summary information of Sanitation District No. 1, as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012, as listed in the table of contents is not a presentation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

NOTE 2 — SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The basis of presentation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the modified accrual
basis of accounting.
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Charles A. Van Gorder, CPA

Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc. John P Walker, CPA, MBA
; ; Lori A. Owen, CPA
Certified Public Accountants John'R. Chamberlin, CPA, MBA

Members of AICPA & KyCPA
Licensed in Kentucky & Ohio

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANGIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the Board of Directors
Sanitation District No.1

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the business-type activities and each major fund of the Sanitation District No.1
{(SD1), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the
financia! statements which collectively comprise Sanitation District No.1’s financia statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered Sanitation
District No.1’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Sanitation District No.1’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Sanitation District No.1's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
ot identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc.

Certified Public Accountants

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sanitation District No.1's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audits, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resulis of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s intemnal control or on compliance. This repori is an integral part of an audit
performed in-accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

I/MM‘W%m Ca .. el

Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc.
Erlanger, Kentucky
November 22, 2013
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Charles A. Van Gorder, CPA

John P. Walker, CPA, MBA
Van (_}(?rder, Wa.lker & Co., Inc. Lori A Gwer,, CPA
Certified Public Accountants John R, Chamberlin, CPA, MBA

Members of AICPA & KyCPA
Licensed in Kentucky & QOhio

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Members of the Board of Directors
Sanitation District No.1

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Sanitation District No.1's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of Sanitation District No.1's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2013. Sanitation District No.1's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Sanitation District No.1's
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Generai of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred.-An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Sanitation District No.1's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal prograrm. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Sanitation
District No.1's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Sanitation District No.1 complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc.

. Certified Public Accountants
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Sanitation District No.1 is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Sanitation District No.1’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal controi over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Sanitation District No.1’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over-compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compiiance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attenticn by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Van Gorder, Walker & Co., Inc.
Erlanger, Kentucky
November 22, 2013
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SANITATION DISTRICT NQ. 1
SCHEDULE CF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Staterments

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
e Material weakness{es) identified? Yes X _No
e Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X__None reported

Noncompliance material io financial
statements noted Yes X__No

Federal Awards

Internal Control Over Major Programs:
» Material weakness{es) identified? Yes X No

» Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X__None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs; Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Section 510(a)

of OMB Circular A-133: Yes X_No
Identification of major programs:
Federal Program or Cluster CFDA No.
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water 66.458
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs; $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X_Yes No

I. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
No matters were reported

lIl. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

No matters were reported
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SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 1
SUNMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

NONE
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This section of Sanitation District No. 1's (SD1) comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed historical and economic information as a supplement to the information presented in the
financial statements and note disclosures to assist readers in assessing SD1's overall financial

health.
CONTENTS: PAGE
Financial Trends: 80-85

These schedules contain trend information to help readers understand how SD1’s
financial performance and position have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity: 86-90

These schedules contain information to help readers assess SD1’s most
significant revenue sources.

Debt Service Coverage: 91-93

These schedules present information to help readers assess SD1’s current

=l AN A

ievel of outstanding debt and SD1's ability to issue additionai debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information: 94-98
These schedules provide information about the environment in which SD1 operates.
Operating Information: 89-100

These schedules contain operating information related to SD4’s infrastructure,
assets and services provided.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these statistical schedules is from the
annual financial reports for the relevant years.

79



08

TiL'eyL'eze’Ls

rrT'vezale’l s Log'zar'Log’ Ly

£62°281°90L" LS

8pe'zo6'acL ¢ 819'602°0ZL §

S9r'62C'009 §  S0L'GRS'TLS §

g11'689°58p &

‘81.2'509'49p §

¥95'85b'e £L5°LL0'Y - - - - - -

80Z'588'SEE'l 129'ZZevleL 1o8'Zet’LOSL  £62'Z81'90L't  8PE'Z9s'gEs 816'6E2'0ZL sov'6LE'009 S02'695'ELS 8..'689's8F  'BLA'S09'/9F
8.8'SEZ'LOL'L  B60'ZES'SkL'L  95.°0F'GLL'L | +G1'925'0b6 zZb'ele'ely LOO'FLO'Z9S §92'L 25206 Lbl'ove'rrk 210'2L9'80F ¥59'zig'e8e
{leg'065'91e)  (zve'egl'esz)  (oev's6e'Ibzd  (666°'cse'o0e)  (Dee'see'ssl)  (0£8'60:'LBl)  (6/9'80L'SPL)  (3c0'pse'sel)  (/689'282'2Z))  (282'8L1'2LL)
g9s'ces’ Ly 6E8'FLL'0S ¥Zo'cab'ose 669'6.5'261 ¥99'286'251 052'688'viL 058'Z06'0L 69a'ces’'ss £g1'1vZ'0s L8E'660'8S
voo'see'ser't 290288'iL8L  OvZ'0ZS'SolL'L  vov'Zez'ebs 869'22.'Fr9 £96'826'845 ¥65'8LL'GYY 016'00¥'1.26 lgs'sol'siy 0£0'ZER" 260
809'250°) £55'460'L 088'v9.L Y ¥i6' LI Y Lra'aLL'e #6Z'sse’e 928'PEL'T - - -
€51'2H0'v0L 161's88'5EL £/%'8./6'92) (AR A r AN 0£9°00v'6L 0ys'90s'gk L 050'1€8'69 v6.l'a6Z'ey gra'sez’lo FS6'0FL'se

. - - - = - . ¥zz'eze't 6680'292'2 205'06€'z
$5E'6Y 615'86 80.2'65 068'SEZ 06E'EET COREZL goe'el LPe'ezL - £0Z'Ie
¢az'zsh €19'Z91 08+'00Z £2¥'192 985'0/8 &bk L8P ¥£0'0Z Z61'602 gro'egl 0glL'zaYy

- - - - - - - - . 00g'eg
osl'e £rb's GZG'C ¥28'c 0es'oZ 2zg'lze 852'elL'} sor'oes's 9il'pLi'e p0l'00E"S
6¥9'vb0’| aLL'acs't Z0e'svs'L 15e'sse’ | 092'640'C 862'8¥2'2 008'21¥'2 016'290'Z 968'980'} 186'vLL
€IE'E19'Z8 ¥09'LyL'08 Lir'eel'el ¥80'2LO'YY erL'06e' LS L29'e51'0g Le0't02'eg ZrS'ZeE're Lar'zLe'gp 804'S60'98
$9€'2J5'61 BEZ'E8S'2E L15'060'LS 0F9'0R2'28 $68'Le¥'sT 198°'219'p8 £Z1'68L'6 0g1'cog'L FI-TN M) -

69%'5€'65 298°186' Ly 0¥6°LEE'YS £59'LEL'EY SSE'eLL'er 8.0'€OE'ZH ¥ZL'ZYe5e FoL'Ere'se cll'iea'gl 0LL'2s2 6l
8LL'sL vee'se 9cZ'8g 0sz'ee ¥09'LL Zel'es §20'95 096"} L08'01L Bbe'al
2al'oes £86'£89 S04'618 L86'ESY B0Z'SSS Fie'sig 626519 18Z'7i9 880'G1F Lig'ogy
00¥'061's 00t'5Le'6 £oY's69's 00¥'92L°2 00zZ'ase's 066'alP'e 169'805'2 219'e0L's 8¥1'gLE'S. LBZ 098"
LZ1ov L 19g'zoe', 56.'368'0 869'0¥8'Y 00L'0¥8'% . - - - -
Wo'LpL'E 9€E'FER'E £26'692'Y LIS'TEY'S 88e'aps’L Zri'6le 852'750 eba'LLB 202265 \e'pSE
ZOL'GEZ Y SEb'ObE'e 899'5558'L L - . - * - . -

LE9'¥E 1el'oz 8z4'c) £59'2Z 8/2'GlL 908'6Z 162'82 yee'se ol g cum.m.m
SLL'LEQ'LL Lob'e01'0l prs'L0z'e alg'erz’L eez'zZsl'e- PS2'0lr'L s¥5'olt'e 6.9'2ZZ6'y ost'eLL'y L1g'120's

- - £45'€69'9 £r8°'209'9 96£'596"8 0/8'952'9 521'200'9 99¢'80L's TES'66P'S 18G'BSE'S
625'850'6L ¢ SZTS'vO¥'s & EBOZSE’L & L¥9'ZE9's  §  bpooZ'0L $ 655'9So'®l ¢ vOL'vas's $ ©/6'Z60'B  § BESWFEZE ¢ 88B'EFOE ¢

£L0Z z1oz Loz 00T 6002 800z 2002 900Z 5002 vooz
JE3 A [EDSI] |I T

$304N0S3d
40 MOT4LN0 G3UTA430 ANV S1ISSY TYLOL

19ap puoq pasesyep Uo s)s0 Buipunyal pausag
SIJUNOSIY 10 MOTHLNO gANYIIAT

$138SV IVLOL
12N ‘sjessy fejideD ejof

uonenaidag parenwnoy (559

ssalbiold ur vopongsuon

SB2IUSA puUE ‘wawdinb] ‘wajsig ‘Buppng ‘pue
s1essy (eydey

19N 'UnoosI PUE S)S00 PUDY POZILOWEUN
sjessy JUaLNAUON

Sjassy peoLysey [elo],

JUNO2SK] pUOy paZINoLWeYn
sway pledaig
1S8ISJU[ paruday
BUIO
20N WaLeAordw|
sjuaLISSassy
59|qeAlR09Y
U HETAT]
Used
| sjessy palamsay

SIa58Y JUaLINg [e10L

BwIgou| Jsassiu| pentaoy
spsodag pue spiedsudg
saflieyd paiiqun paniooy
pund Jaylo wol ang
siagio
2(qeAIDIFY B0 Vi
sapunLwon
SOURMO|tY 18N 'SlaWCIsns
9|0EAIE0aY SJUNODYY
SlUBUNSSAU|
sjuejgainbg yse) pue Yysen
1883y JuaLng
S13ssY

s1e9) [E9S]4 U3 1S5E7

(s393ys eouejeg) uonisod jeN J0 SusWAlEIS

L "ON 30M)SIg UopeNUES




|8

£6.Z3L'00L°LS

TLAI'SVL'EZE'LY  pPTPEZ'BLE LS 198°Z8Y'LOCLS SrE'T9E'AEL $  BIG'SEZ'OTL § S9¥'6IE'009 § SOL'6RS'CLS § 8.I'689'G8Y § SLI'SO9OF §
PR OPEesL isr'aigiavs 8LL'68E"152 IL0'LiT'eve V6L SorSrY PeR'666" LY £28°%690° 2V YL b5 LOR 151°708°28¢ 8¥2'022°29¢
06'083'2¢ §E0'Til'ge 6.8'8ep'ag 280'928'0) 909'¥ZLeE oza'ras'ie 199°z00'0} liz'zse'el 8sn'oob'el ses'eBs L)
050'0v6°26 628'065°001 62¢'/£9'601 BZZ'B56'ZY gzi'sle'se oLz'lz0'ze Z6k'zse’se £on'les'sZ (23281} 652'660'95
9e6'208°/19 L29'1v5'0Le 019'£0Z'909 L0L'SZH'985 Z09'$TH 188 Z6L'l8L'\Ze 0ZL'¥15'09¢ 0Z1'258'PSE 10'2Z8'LLe $S9'228'982
806'208°5.29 15:1'116"LiS E¥L'CE0'00 921V 26" LY oL 264562 +99'682'16T Zra's0t'sls LLS'ZF0'2L) 129'288'204 0¢'sea‘vol
L0V 088678 89'50¥' 225 09t'228'L0g 68.'088'64E 660's¥8" /22 ¥8L'PE0'FET S¥D'Z8Z'ZEL 129'6/8'58 000'096°08 000°062'c6
5Bg's81'08¢ 1eg'g89'z6E 9ES'891 00V 62.'9¢9'6PE 680'CFE'LEZ  PRLPEO'EZ  SpO'ZAZEEL  L29'6le'6e 000'095'08 000'08L'28
oLg'08L'gY) 185804 'YEL ¥v6'ese'LOL - - - - - 3 . -
BS0'PS'e oFe'ze0'LL 60c'eeg' L1 £8L'zez'os P06'Z280'LY vze'sLb'ag gBs'asn’Le Le6'Las'sl olL'1el'e L0g'z92'0
sir'oee's ose'ose's 15e'LL9'e 696'cLr'9 age'slg'y 290'cal'y 928'€e8'e 202'89L'L G58'ces't ar5'z66'1
¥3L'rze’L 066'L02'T 8se'val's z - - - 5 . -
- - - - - - - = . ¥08'902
- o - pal-g-18-4] Lez'LL0'y 699's712 2eb'zeo'y £L2'868'y £va'a0l zeo'sza'e
- - 209'105'08 g9z'l6b'2e 895'005'eT 0¥e'zo8'v2 Lg¥'ecL's 2.8'L29"L 211'e05
gre'Lez'oy 6PE'6LO'EE PSE'PEL'DE pog'zra’le L8¢'8cg'0z 9:1'gg'0z “se6'avl'al €56'098°01 SH'009's 698'L82'y
6F2'3cr '8l 1518621 £50'088'2L geg'/eg’a z94'¥P9L'2 G20'T6L'9 “ooo'sil'e 000'0L9'e ooo'oez'e 000'c60'S
085" LY : {osw) ogl 0eg pLL'L £66'0/1 8z3'0Z1 PeE'LE lez'os
£gL'sy 8/5'49 Loz'ss 090'eL ¥sL'as = - = - -
o5t £8 ove £80'2 Lal'sl Leg'al 19e'22 €ip'L2 ¥8L'YY geg'srl
[F RPN 299'208'L 58.2'968'¢ 869'0v8'y 00L'0v8'Y - - : -
2LL'2 (voL) -Ta sel PEE'PEL 169°cE Sh2'512 vrs'ieL 881221 8.1'68
ase'Lvs'L 98.L'06%'L 611'9Z¢'L 08F'Z56'L G00'19l'L 085'96¥'L 219'808'L 18z'058 646'€02 £80'ceg
Big'8lS'E TLL'9L9'LL 0SE'PYE'S POr'sZH L BL1'E85°CL Z6Z'8LE'LL peF'ese's 880'08L'S yovr'eek'y ¥22'see
i L] ’ $ - $ . ¢ - £ gze'oov $ o18'062 ¢ 8el'082 ¢ ops'ez § zi012 ]
€102 zZhoZ L0z o0z E00Z 007 2002 9002 2002 #002
deaj |easiy

NOLLISQd L3N aNY SzLMIgYIT TYIoL
NOILISOd L3N TVI0L

pejomsan

pajolnssy

199Q pajeiey 10 19N ‘sjassy [eNdex i pejsaay|
NOLLISOd LN

SALLMIEVYI VL0
SAYIqel] Bl noUoN [Zj0].

uojjeziowe jo 18l ‘sjqeded spuoyg
siqeied saloN
Saf|Nqe| T JUSUNILON

S}9SsY pajolnsey woud a(geded =9))|ige|T [eloL

a|geied Jsalap paruaoy
s|qehed perudoy
UeIRIgAQ Yueg
a|geied suNoday
a|qeied sejoN
£lassYy PajolSay Woly ajqeied senliqer

sanlliqeTuaung [eyo)

1981 tuay-Huo Jo uoiod Juauny
alqeled xe| ss(eg
S{erUaYy Jau0
saMunNLILIos)
pund 2o o ang
uoISuUSd pUE Saxe) Parusoy’
s|eusg pue [joiked pancoy
a|qefed sjunosoy
1210 pue sysodacr Jawsny
SaIIqer] juaLny
SHILITEVT]

sIeg) {B9sl4 ua) jseq
(s1e0yg soue|eg) UoRIsOd JON JO SjUsWElE}S
| "ON 191s1q Uope)ueg




TAY]

(panuguog)
ozL'Ley'e §ec'poc's §8£°696'S s¥Z'2c9'c 886'62.L'6 o9b0‘1L6S'ZL  20Z02LPL  LOZ'Z98°6  tILSPOG'EL  0F9'8ZLLL JMOONI ONILYHIAO
L66'G8Z°L8  668'985'SL  8C6'9ZY'TL G9Z'162°59 098'0¥6°LS  £l6'CZV'vy  628°1l2'tt  £ZELG6YZE  Z91'92ZS'8T  GLvI180°GE S3SNIdXI ONLLYYIL0 TYLOL
Zre'SyZ'0F  OPO'SBS'6E  E€LZ'EE0'ZC  89Z'2¥e'Ze  ©LL1E/'€T  SYZ'BE6'EL  ZZB'0VS'ZTL  0./2'/89'7L  68¥'LOL'DL  erl'eec's uogeoaideq
90e'sé¥'y  GE6'ZI6'Y  0.6'TLL'9 T £59'[6L'Y% 6TY'VEL'E  TZL'ivPG 1LD9°0GE $29'091°L 6o0'9zh 068'9L¥ © Jayio pue sijedal Joley
CPE'VYS'OE  VZ'080°LE  §G.'029'92  ¥PE'ZLL'SZ  859'%/0'SZ  800'/£0'PC  9SE'9BE'0Z  B.E'/€P'8L  8ZI'000'8L  ZEY'GET'GL  UORBASIUIWPY pUE SJUBUSUIRI ‘uokesRdQ jeloL
- - - - - 139 16G'1Z¥ 8/2'66Z 99/'9Z Z59'51 sesuadx3 Jeyl0
- 8LZ'19 Zel'zoz 62Z0'€8Z 16628 1G0°0E - . - - sjoalold |euawuonaug ajels fejusws|ddng
Zot'09L'C 928'GGE'Z [4AN L] FR AL Z96'661°} z76'095'L zi8pL'L £9Z'91¥'L ZZL'e0'L rig's/e sasuadx3 4210 ¥ wswudinbl * aimongselyu|
G90°/80°) 1Z0'942°1L 62Z'E9L'L #59'960'1 "EELZE0°L 98'91Z'L  08L'TE6 205'Z¥8 ove'lee g11'\es sasuadx] uoljesadQ aloieA
89z'¢89'.  960'Z9€’L  €9L'9LEL SyL'86l'L 16€'159'9 868'566'9  819'6Z6'¢  8Z'Y9S'S  0LSYIYY  OEv'ZeY'E asuadxg s{eoways 2 IO sen ‘senlinn
BEP'COB'L  086'ZrLL erS'rer' L LOr'ERL') gL I¥E'L g/€°002'L  660'596 €zL'e/8 £98°c¥8 2256'955 sosuadxy uonensiuWpY 8ol0
§69'9LZ'S pso'glL'e ¥GF'£00'E 7.8'64L'C LLo'esL'lL g96e'vLa'} €42's6'L 205'986'L 180'288'L gza'clz't SIVIAISS [ENJORAUOD B [BUOISSDJO0I
08Z'6€5'L  00¥'929'9  €29'0/.'S Li2'618's 696'FPL'S L6 /86'y  28Z'LP'v  Ges'ogb's  eelleZ's  Ti6'is0'e sosuadxg sajusdu| g Jyeusy safojdw3
vel'zee'0L  lgi'el8'L 64.'999'f 5ZE'¥Z8'9 le0'/68'L  180'¢e8’9 182'€20'S 68Oy 682'/82'0  088'.0§'S sabepp g Aejes
UORBASIUNLPE pUR SDUBUSIUIEW ‘Uolelsd)
SASNIJX3 ONILYYILO
L1LL'202°68  PRZL96'€®  E£TE96E'SL 015'96£'60 8¥8°09°'19  6L0'518°95 . 180°'PSP'LY  PTS'CSE'Zb  969'TEYIY  SL1°991'9¢ SANNIATYH ONILYHIdO TVLOL
LZ8'89 6.5'6¥5 90F'Zrr'L 0eg'ssl 668'01€ I¥Z'04E'L  T8T'209'L 180'v8L'T  gsL'os2'z Zeg'Tel’l sjuawesinquial Joafold
£66'05 #¥0'69 L10°2 Z66'61LL 06l'v¥ 059'66 Z9e'8eL 261'1EL L66'651 8£9'6E g8nuaAal 1810
Z6e'se 160'61 GGE'se 8€6'6Y #96'21 tzL'a 0zL'9 81S8'% 691'C¢ 296 $0119A0031 Jqap peg
689'GZ1 8e0'L¥L ¥69'4E1 81Z'c0l 009'/8 Leg'¥6 L¥E'90L £25'v0! 1Z¥'B6EL avi'oe SB2IAISE [ENJIRIUOY)
¥12'186°L oge'Ler'L vl9'zee'L 589'26%'L Zoz'6ll'L 0.0'268 058'G/9 221'109 18Z'99% 968'0Ly Souy pue safjeusd
Z89'69 00£'69 oLF'ee 8.8've 95126 #0002 689'€Zl 8tL'vLL GeV'iG1 Lwa'siz ~ suoposdsul
910zt 80V LYl S05'rhl 6226 (WANY 8/6'Z61 996°0L1 29€'502 Zyo'are GLS'¥61 Buyney eBpn|g
Z6L'0ve's IS6'G9L'L 8EL'C8Z'T 0ZL'2eL'T ZPS'9EZ'T  90G'Z00E LLL'6PZ'E  269'€99°E  PES'YBO'Y  $96'L08'C $99} uj-de} 3 sjwad
€811G2°LL  pE2'e8E'LL  1/6°160'LL 162'018'0L $ES'1L0S'0L avl'6EL'S o9b2'39Z'0L v09'LLE'S 295008 oF/'8es's sobileyo tajem wiolg
g16'795'C/$ Ob2'69C'89% 16S'/88'Le § SZL'PEE'ES § 0CZ'99S2PE ZOT'TRE'LbS 0ZF'LZLLES 999'0.6'92 9.9°1L08'92F 669'91L7CH sabieyo soares Jamag
SANNIAIY ONILVUIO
£10Z r4%i4 107 oLoz 6002 8002 2002 9002 S002 002
Jea) [easid

siea ) [B2S14 U] ISe]
uopisod JeN Ul sabueyy pue ‘sesuadx3 ‘senusady Jo sjuswalelg
L "ON }913s1q UoljejiueS




€8

228'v20°L § (2oc’eri’L)$ 619'089'C0LS PZe'ShL'POZS 09S'SOM'E § LLO'OEGE'SLS 629°ZZS'6LS CI9'PZL'GLS 606°LL0%0ZS ZO9GEl'eld NOLLISOd L3N NI 39NVHD
£29°258'GL  SPY'vO09  ZES'MTL'LLL  ¥O0'SSL'PIZ  Ze9'eeZ'Z 999'L0S°Z  ZLe'SER'S 09L'0S6'0L  SLPGSS'S zos'oee't SNOLLNEININOD TVLIdYD
(vez'gze'n) (sz6'205'2) {i58'0v0'®)  {orz'so0'oL} -22R'SilL9 SPE'SZY'LE  LLETIE0°CL  €LIVLL'S YeY'TIY0L  OV9'E0CS SNOLLNAIYLNOD

TVLIdVD 380439 NOLLISOd 13N NI JONYHD

£65'v2E°61  BE9'06Z'2L  §95°18Z°9) £88°09¢°LL ZZVLL0' 059°6€L5 18¢e'9Tr'y £81'1409°c ISP'LIE'Y 06¢‘0L0't SIDUVHO YIHLO ? 1STHIINI TVLIOL
160'sy 8L - 508'552 ¥50'981 Sea'gse S9v'Z61) £50'6G1L 0ee’ i) P TAS 9LL'vLL asusdxa 7 junoasip puoq Jo uanezipouy
9sv'IeE'6l  LAL'YGEBL  092'520'9) 628'vLL L1 LET'BSL'S SBL'2¥Sg CEE'1ST'Y E5L'E9V'E ¥50'€89'y ¥12'956°2 1q9p Wue-6uo) o jseiejy)

SADUVYHD HIHILO ANV LSHTHELLNI

MerszV'e  9zTvey'z | ceeLiT'T (zog'09z'7)  Z96'S9Y'T  6VE'OLLY  96V°I83'C  G66'016'L  IOP'SIC'L  OBESPZ'L . FWOOINI ONLLYHIJO-NON “IV10L
(9e5'08t) Lb6'98z (ges'ery) 96 ¥01 8/£'ZhE (912'188) £80'abS ¥9./'66 L¥0'6PS {zes'esg'L) sjusupsaAL o
an|eA 1aiew Jiey ut uonepaidde pazieaiun
(822°018'1) (8Sb'zec's) (€19'LIF'Z)  (29)'9v9'%)  8Sv'eS 291'18 _ c9g'L 0z9'z. rac'et sjasse pexy 40 o|es uo (sso)uen
€L8'086'C  Ze|'s08'e  9£l'egE'c 8Zr'Log - - - - - - Spuog BolIaLLY Pling UQ SHPesD |BJopad
Ze9'leg Lie'ezL oeL'2i2'L Lo'cea't SZL'p90'T  866082'c  CIP'6ES'S  995'CIe'L 9/4'2279 aL0'219'Z SLUIODU| JSas]
, INOONI ONLLVHIJO-NON
£L0Z 2Lz 102 010z 6002 8007 200z 9002 5002 00z
leaj [easiq

slea ) [eds|d uaj 1se
uol})Iso 39N ul sebueyg pue ‘sasuadXy ‘senuansy Jo sjuswalels
} "ON 3015sIg uopejues




1£°]

625'850'6L$ GZS'POT'6 § £89'ZSE'L $ IL¥D'ZE9'S § FPP'O9Z'0LY 65£9C9'8L$ POL'PO6'C § PEL'OGE'S § S6Z'Y66'6 § SEG'EPO'T § pouad jo pu3 siuajeainb3 yse) pue ysen
gZs'vov'e  £89°Tetl 1¥9'269'6 PprO9Z'0L  69£°0£0'8L  POLPO6'E  PEL'O6E'SE  S6Z'PE6'6 886°cho’s  06E°ZYS'L pouad jo Buiuunbag suajeambs yseo pue ysey
$00'¥65'6 Zve'LLL'z  (8se'eec'?) (cos'els) (s16'698'e)  959'b29'vL  (oep'iee's)  (LoL'ge) logfose's  (gor'geg's) weleAamb3 ysed pue ysed u| (ssedrdeq) aseaidu)
{ere'see've} (sos'oge'sy) (oov'ole'vz) (oos'lev'ee) (eve'sya'or) (voz'cos'ez) (g08'beo'ol) (1Zv'sse’se) (916°020°82) (Ssp'vlo'0g) apov Butoueuly (eyded uop Joj pasn ysedIaN
9Lo'LLL L 8G2'0LL'ZL  009'028°L {gez'c68'Le)  10g'1e6' Ly (gb)1°'262'8S) 092°1¥9'C  £L0'8SF'. 1ozl {282'v8) Spund pajalsay Ul ssealoa(]/(aseaiou))
(cco'oza'ze) (8e1'pe5'0L) (6l0'czL'col) (9se'ves'syl) (199'avs’zl) (600'Z6S'0s) (9Z0'088'v9) (0pe'ooo'or) (1.18'vG6'zz) (169'112'¢2) suoinguiuo [eydes 1o 19N
‘sjassy [ede] JO LOIINASUOD Pue uolsinboy
(GLp'206'6)) {(£8.'900'61) (Zi0'c62'sl) (ZL1'696'e)  (lov'9zZ'e) (pye'lip'c)  (sie'sie'e)  (e62'609'€)  (Lpl'Wwi'v)  {08T'6Ger'e) Jsassju| pazijendes o JoN ‘pled Jsaisiu|
{svz'vzi'cl) (8R1'p1G6'Zl) (see'cos'os) (zos'val's)  (sop'sze'e)  (1ve'oee'y)  (000'019't)  (ooo'oee's)  {oo0'se0's)  {000'096'2) 1qep wue) Buol uo epew sjuswied
- - - - - sz’ (0g2'ere) 892°120'L . - {iunoosiq) wnjwaid puog
- - - - - - - {26£'¢19'08) = - jusby Buipunysy puog o} juswiied
- - - - - (g66'6.22) (s¥8'ser) {srz'ocy) - - 51800 @ouenss| puog
981'€ZT S69°E0Z SEL'BL zel'1s 85+'65 - : 69| #GO° 1L £9/'21L $]955Y 10 9[ES WY PEAISISY YSED
£18'065°¢ zea'sos'e oel'esa's 821 199 - . - - - - SpUOE BINSWIY PING Uo SHPIY [RI8pad
GPZ'9E6'0Z  9LE'EO6'6C  LGG'DLE'SEl  £62'1Z6'PSL  LZL'LL0E ¥61'/69'801 904'950°1S  LLE'6GD'9E  9ZE'GHRS'L aly'vi6 SpuUCg Pue SSj0N U0 paalsoay |ediduld
saAnoy Suaueul4 pajejay pue |ejiden wosy smojd ysen
(og2'g6%'L)  68Z'89. {acz1se'e)  (bE1'Tie'8)  (Zb2'2ST'V)  196'Z8¥’'LL  (BYL'68S°LL) +#S¥'SPS'EL  899°0SE°LL 1226028 sapiAnay Buisueurd jepded Aq pasn Ysed 13N
{soe'zse'?)  (61E) (ece'cez'ol) (z6z's6L01) {eoz'cos's) ozo'sel'es  (S9L'vZL'LZ) 6¥S°028°LL  SKE'TELOL  PEL'IPY'S sjuaunsaau| Uf (ssealou|) asealzsq 19N
69G6'€98 809'89L G12°288') 851'289°L 91§'01E'C IP6'€8Z'S  9L¥'PES'S  S09'WEL') SzZE'es1'L 160°990'¢ SLIODU| JUSUSSAU|
’ SOIHANDY BupsaAu] wosy smold ysen
£99°0Z¢'SY  19Z°0SC°ZF  OPZ'LZS'IE  LER'SZYLP  0BYOZL'EE  ZGE'ZE9'9r  lZL'ObL'ZZ  908'GLE'9Z  PLO'0ZOEZ  998°990'8) samARay Bugeledo Ag pepiacad yses JeN
(pro'clo'2l) (s29'6z8'cl) {(pEs'vie'el) (ois'ews’tl) (zve'seo’tl) (piz'svz'ol) (L0m'ees’ti) (le6'os9'0L) (cog'0za's)  (1L86'veL'8) §201A19G Jo) s9ako[dwig Jo Jeyaq Lo o o] pled
(z05'e69'z2) (zzo'Le6'sl) (o60'ZoR's?) (9/0'6e0'ZL) (200'zes'sl) {ve'zs9'11l) (1gs'2e9'y)  ({seo'ozs'e) (sig'lov'e)  (508'Zrl'o) S8R pUB SPo0Y Jo} SIalddng o) pled

YOR'EEL'SES ZOL'LGH'18S BGL'ESE'LL § €2r'e0r'0l § 6ZF'Y6L'LO% SLE'ELO'PS$ 6.Y'LO6'tr$ LOV'6LS'OPS ZEL'SYE'Ir$ ZpO'vPS'EEd

SI9LLO0JSNY) WO PAAIODSY
sanianoy Bupesadp woll moj4 Yseo

€102

(41114

Loz

010z

6002 8002 2002 200T S00Z 002

1ea ), [eosid

siea ) |eos|q uaj jse
SMO|4 YSED JO SJUSWISIE}S
1 "ON Jol3sIg ucpejues




G8

—F=--Tai TENENEESESm-=s . :
B/8'9EZ'LOL'L $ 690'leE'8PLL § BOLZOVSLL'L §  YEL'EZI'OPE  § ZEE'BIE'ELS $ LOO'KIO'EOS § SOLLIS'Z00 $ Lpl'OVE'RPY §  ZL0'ALS'SOF & pSO'TIZEEE § 1oN ‘sjessy |ejded (oL
992'¢e8 L 6ea'vLL0G ¥eo‘ear'osz 660'825'/61 ¥e9'2e6'es1 05Z'c58'bhL 050'Z06'F01 699'cE5'8S £a1'1¥2'08 LEE'860'85 ssaiboxd u| uopgonnsucs fejoL
g95'5L0'L gr0'ogsb's eoL'sbe’s - ori'i68's piv'sZe's BLR'CaF'0l ges'est’s 157'829'L 880'¥E9'e - Isjem wiclg
00Z'rie'0r 1B4'¥so'op L8R'9ES'THE £ST'TTLIBL 08L'201'5%) ZEF'LIE'PEL $96'8DF'E0L Zh1'708'98 8/0'109" v L8¢'660'86 uonepueg
ssajGoud up uonjansuog
£LE'zOr'6LL' L 0zT'ezL'e60' ) vri'ves'von SSH'EYETrL gcs'see'ssh L5L'ESL' 2L c18°809'26¢ g/g'zla'see veg'sie'aoe gle'cLl'sze 19N '©10afosd patajdwon jeyol
(190'985°8L€) avm.mmr.ﬁu (98¥'s85"1¥2} (ae6'cee a0z) (096'sce’sal} (oeg'eas'Lat) (az9'e01'8bL) (geo'rea‘sel) (z80'e82'2Z1) {292'812'211) uopeissrdep pmenwnase sser
Fo0'666'SEY'L 290°ee8'LIe'L 0¥2'0z5'90L L bSb'caz'6v6 889'ZZ.'¥r0 295'626'945 ¥65'8L2'GPS 916'09b' 125 158'681L '8 0£0'7e8' L8F spzafoud pajerdwion ero)
08l's¥9's 091 'sP9's 660'08P'c Z69'915' Z89'8Lg'e - ’ - - - [BpoLY alemos rRlBm uUolg
281'896'p.8 §5o'FLR'96E YFIN: NV eoL'¥50'eez avF'err'Le 686'POT'LL 686'v02' /1 556'RL9'VL £g'0pe 2L . UONI8(|0D JS1EM ULIOIS
290'1E - - ¢ - - . - - wawdinba Blem uLo)g
Jz0'sZ < [ . i - : . - - S3QIY3A J8jem ULMS
066'98% 82/.'601 e - - - . - - - puB| Jejem uwiols
050'288'S1 050'288'CL 155'155'51 945'809'1 ovL'LLz'0L - - - - = [9pOW &/BMYOS UORBIUBS
£¥8'0LL'9L L2¥'ies'ss cie'vie'll 652'500°69 098°'FEE'89 SZr'vse'09 9/2'089'c9 0ZZ'G6E'ZO Lpa'egs'28 0sr'180' Y juawdinba pue ed [eusg .
08E'L28'LET L¥8'106'522 £25'sP2'8E 1 9Er'PLB'SEL EEF062'06 8zo'er0'L8 0es'e8s'on 95£'960'68 0t9'680'08 210'9e8'6. |esods|p pue Juauneast
158'270'58 805'05'F, 005°'LYE'S. G58°920' 1L 19€'980'09 £21'998'cS 189°0€L'25 Lie'rLe'es 162'095'Ly T9T'L60'LY suore)s dumg
ZeLesl’eye & 669'ZG0'tZ8 S L/E'9vE'oSy ¢ geb'eclley § Q00'8.8'E8C  §  ZZv'vB0'SSE § ZLI'ESK'STE & 8Op'9L6'B08 § 0ZLWZE'sEz § 92e'e0s'tez ¢ wayshs uoRasy o
gefoud pajejdwon
€102 Tz 10z 0102 8002 8002 100Z 2002 $00Z 00z
123 [e98|] =—

.w._mm; |easi4 usj jseT
sjassy |eyde) JaN
} “ON Jauysiq uonepueS




o8

spJooas Bununoosoe Las e2Inog

%02 LG'¥L %02 60°¢C9 %G1 PLLG %0 66'¥ %0 66 ¥ %0 66'v Suloos g ueyl sio
%0¢ £E'99 %0¢ 6ot %G1 LL6E %0 LO'PE %0 LO'¥E %0 LOvE asnoy wool g ol ¢
%0¢ LevE %02 659'8¢C %G1 Z¢8'ee %0 1202 %0 1402 %0 LL0¢C 8snoy wool g 1o |
201BG palsjewun
%0¢ ¢6¢Ce %02 80'6L %S| 06°GL %0 08'¢el %0 08¢l %0 as'cl liq wnwiuiw Alzspeny)
%0¢ (R= %0¢ 60°¢ %S 1L 178" %0 1G°L %0 Ls°L %0 LGL 0000'001 18A0
%02 9L¢C %02 0ee %G1 L6°L %0 99’1 %0 g9'L %0 99°L 000°001-L00'ST
%0¢ £€ee %02 69C %S 1 {4 %0 g6l %0 ge'lL %0 g6’ 000°GZ-100'G
%0¢ 09'¢ %0¢ 00'¢ %S| 0S¢ %0 LT %0 LT %0. A4 000'G-108
%0¢ 28'¢ %02 gL'e %G| G9C %0 oee %0 0ee %0 0e'C 008-0
abueyn oy abueyn ey ebueyn ey abueyn a9y abueyn ajey obueyn oy (4DH) 1994 21909 001 Ul
% % % % % % ebesn Jajem
6002 8002 1002 9002 G002 vooz
Jea ) jeasid

6002-700C S1edA [eISiH

abueyo abejusalad pue ‘uoijeUIULID)B(] 9By ‘S9ley JO a|Npayoss

| "ON }913sIg uopejiues




18

sprooa) Bununoooe |LAS 92no0g

"Aluo Atenigead ybnouy Jaquisaop Jo sujuow ayl Buunp abesn Jajem palsiow uo paseg - Bulng sopoe4 s03UMA (2)
abesn Jojem passjow Alyiuow uo peseq {|)
"Bunng Ayiuow e o} Buig Auepenb e woug Paydums LS 0102 Jea A |29SI4 YUm SAIDSY:]

%Sl EVEP %51 LLLg %S| va'ee %S| 9582 Suwioos g uey) a1op
%G1 ya'ee %S GG'8¢ %S| £8'vC %G1 65°l¢ 9snoy Wwool g 0} ¢
%S 1 00'0C %S 1 6Ll %S 1 Zi'st %S| gLel 9SNoYy wool 1o |

A91AI9g palajowul)

liq wnwiunw Auepend
%G1 ge°El %G1 9’11 %G1 zLol %G1 088 [i1q wnuauu Ajyiuoly
%G1 690 %G1 298G %G1 90°G %G1 o'y {40H) 1894 219 001 42d ejBl Je4
(40H) 1884 21N 001 Ut
abesn Jeyepn
(2) renuspisay

%51 8E'El %G1 va'LL %51 Lol %G1 08’8 i'q wnuuw Ajyuop
%G1 Go'p %G1 ¥o'v %51 LGe %G1 go'e 001’8 18AQ
%S1L 009 %S 1L fAAY %S1L ¥S'b %51 c6'c 00¥'8-104°1
%G1 699 %S FA R, %51 20's %S1 or'v 00.'1-0
abueyn aey sbueyy aley abueyn aey sbueyn sy EOIV “mmn_ a1qQnD Q0| Ul

9%, % % oL abesn Jojepn

(1) 1enueprsoy-uoN

cloe A 1102 1] 1114

lea) |easidy

SieoA [eosiy Jno jse]
-abueyy sbejussiad pue ‘uolEUIWIS)E( BEY ‘Sejey JO 8|NpPayoS
| "ON 30H}SIq Uonejiueg




88

sigjsifial Bung LOS sounog

826'¥6 £11'e6 SP0°'c6 866'06 Lri'os 80528 SJUNO2TY JAJBA WI0}S [BJ0 L
8z6'v6 ELL'Eh Gh0'E6 966'06 L¥2'08 806'28 . sasse() fIv
SsejeLlST SIUNoSYY JajeAA UI0lS
Z0'00L 591'66 ¥LL'LG 06%'56 29Y'C6 211008 SIUNOS0Y Jamag |eja]
2r0'001 691’66 IV 06¥'56 99v'c6 /10°06 R sesseld IV
SOjELUIST SJUNOIDY IIAISS Jemag
SJUNOIIY J2UWOISND
ova'ley'ol §  2Zl'088'6 ¢ 2 £99'ZS0'6 3 osv'eve's $ ozo'SLL'e $ l0e'g9sr § SONUAASY J13J2AA WIOLS JON
%LTL %LE°1 %890 %L %LE0 %000 pailig senjeuad g senuassy
0} S50 23U Jo abejuesied
{212'v21) (s19'281) (029'19) {1L82"¥6) (gzz‘oe) = SHO SJUIM J0JepA LLIOYS [EJOL
90£"081 6L5°LF) 288121 £9Z'9Z1 geb'oLL 855°66 sel){eua d adlAIag JAMIS [B10)
g0e'081 845 LYl 8871t £92'9Z1 cEVOLL 85566 sas8e[D IV
Saljjeuad aflAles JOJEAA WI0)S
158°GEP 0L 19,7923 98Y'Z66'8 P0S'LLES g187E0'8 6V1'8E5'L SONUBATY JOIEAA ULIOIS [B10 )
1GEGEPOL §  20.9/86 $¢ 9BYZ668 $  PO9Z1E8 $  GI8PE09 $  6¥LBEGL S sassB|D Iy
SONUBAOY JOJEAA LIIOIS
295'cZ68'sh §  968'cZ9'6C $ 2 665'tiE'LE §  286'0989T $ 6LLI62'9Z & SvL'0iL'TT $ senuaAay eJIAles 19MeS JON
°%LLL) %86} %I} %LT %ES"} b pajlig SoneuSd B SenueAey
0} SO SJAA Jo ofiejuaniag
(z62'628) (zos'ss2) G(rpizee) (zov'aoc) (962'001) {ev0'cLE) SHO S 901AISG J9MES (10,
#£0°c36 9gg"9LL YeLLLS a0°0Ly abe'Lbt I seflensd 63IAI0S James (210
7€0'C96 9ER'OLL ¥ELLLG $90°0LY gve LPt LLLLIE sasse|) IV
San[euad adIAleg 1emag
oveZTLL'SY 79.'969°6¢ 90E'ErT 1LE 9.6'v9¥' 9z £91's¥L'52 119°811'TT SONUBAGY JoMag [£30]
{izz'voL) (zz'voe'L) (82¥'gct) L1728 (rcZ'9gE) (cz1v'822} spunysy Jals|yenads ssan
e48'0/1'0F & /96°650°MP $  POLLE9'LE $ 0GL'ZETiZ ¢ Lov'lOL'eZ § ZsLiop'Ee § $OSB(D IV
SONUAATY 30IAI2T IIMOG
6002 8002 1002 9002 500Z 002 SIIEN JUN029Y
Jeay) [eosid

6002 JEOA [29SI4 YBNOIU} 1007 JESA [E9S15

sse|g Bulig Ag umopyealg SenuaAdy JIJBA) WLIOYS B JOMOS

| "ON 101381 uoljejiues




68

sisibal Guig Las eomog

99.'v6 005'¥6 9ZY've g88'ce FIUNOIIY JSJEAR WIOIS JR30 1
$l9'2 LZ6'L £82'9 zZol'e SSE|] [BUSPISoY-UON
ZBO0'L8 625'98 £rlog gzl'sg $SE[D) [enuUapisay
S5EW)ST SJUNOIDY JBEAN WLIOYS
gLP'Z0L 0£1"Z0L -666'L0L 6E5'001 SJUNODDY Jamog |ejoL
ver's 9516 B0°0L £68'6 SSE|) [BUSPISSH-UON
¥26'¢6 $l8'28 0Z6'L6 949'06 SSEID [BlUsSpisay
SEJBLINST SN0y 9I|AIES JIDMBS
SJUNOIIY J80}SNS
69Z'6E6'LL $ 002'9S5'LL §  S¥YZOT'IL $ b6 9%60) § SINUBAY JAjRAp LLIO)S 19N
%y %ED} %L6'0 %P0 L Pa[lIg soneus,{ 9 SSNUSASy
3 8.0 3IAA JO aBruasiag
(21¥'5¥1) (ssz‘0z1) (19z'coL) {o0g'stL) SHO ANLA J8IRM UIIOIS [e30 ]
920'891 8z0'39! viv'olL Z00'9ZL sageusd 931Al8G JaMeg (B30
Si9'18 0zh 1L 0i¥'6L 6LY'20 SSELD [BluapIsay-LcN
Li¥'901 906'96 100'L6 £85'101 $9€|J |eljuapisay
Safjjelie ] 82IAISS JOJBAA WI0)S
009°006'11 Z66'805°LL ¥resaL L 260'9Z6'01 SeNUaAaY JSIBAA WI0)S 2101
6L57Z0°L 00.'08L 965'685'9 GBO'E8L'D SSE[D [enuapisey-UoN
bZ0'elR'y &  z6Z'8ELY $§  9v9'S09't $  SIOERLY & $88[0 [ENUBPISEY
SINUSABY JIJBAA WLIOIE
886'264°LL §  I6L'969'99 § SpzZel'es § SzZ6Z8lS § SBNUBAdY I[AIIS 1emag JaN
%9L ) %29’k %08°L %LE°L peliig sanjeusd ' s8NUaASY
0} £J0 3)upa Jo abeuastad
(oss'esz't) i¥80°001'L) (226211} (z1r'Lz2) SHO 9L 991uBg Jemag [0
SZS'BLE'L oLL'6PZ L Z0P'ZS11 968'50L°) sapjeusd adlAlag JOMIG [210L
$52°0LE 260'0/2 £9%°00€ 8¥.'a0Z SSEID |efuapisay-UoN
292'990'L Z50'646 BE6'LSY gL '668 SSE[D |enuapisey
sojjjeusd 62IAISS IeMmes
£10'C0L"LL 12160599 028°508°835 VWLPPE LG SenuaATY Jamag [E10L
(2e¥'054) (ipL'go0) (L1v'pog) (109'cge) spunay Jsiap [epedg sse
Ler'ior'LE £L8'250'92 ¥19'281'57 lse'sel'sl SSBLD [BAUIP|SeY-LON
0.6'S96'0F ¢ 50¥'9L6'8E $ I59'/98'Es $  cge'LlLO'ZE & £8E[7) (BfuapISeN
SONUIABY 8IIAIIG JOMOS
g0z ZLoZ LLOZ 0L0Z SWEN JUNo99Y
Tea, |easid

€10Z J€3A [208[d YBNOI 0107 JEAA [EDSIS
sse[) Bujiig Ag umopyealg sonuaAay JaJBAN UWLO)S B JoMES

} "ON JoLsig uopeuEs




06

saojoauyspicos Bullig 1S soinag

“Rgsnpen elesEnag ay), hﬂuEm_nm._nE puE w._gm_. [EIRIEL SAONPOJA
Emm_w.n_._w_mz u_nm..ﬁaub_ _Em :mnn.n mﬂanu__...nzﬂq_

B - S| =n> Eut.ow_.
xnw.ﬂm:_uﬂ_ mm._.o.._. uﬂnza..._o._o:h

O] "SIGAEL] P
] *BUINaUASI SRTEC BUIAK
OU| SN #IIBY HeA

. [DAD) Hodiyy _m_..o;mEmE—}uacmSEu_.Eoz TEULIDUID JSReID:
.mmmﬁan: wrw‘_muw..?uwuauqa mg__‘mz._mﬂ_mu i3y _m.amnm w_.___uc_ mcﬁoto :Pao:_up.n

Fodify AunGg) LoIUoy|
ML _m.omecU <Z_u_0_

gy Aiddng (eaols
wuoccom _m.:uEE_anm

P PO

g-Jaded aung
._mEmu _._aE._nE»_u mmzun mN_Rna:_Enu - .EE 7 JBUCEN 8, Q.__Ecn_
"“Banpaiding ysey. fo JaSnpold e an]

I ] muoo"_nw._w_am. o L
umﬂcaou d_maaEwa@ﬁ_WcB:mx‘_E §.ab an_%_w.i.g —uiu_n_ JRIBAN ADERUOUHON . - R n_x u m_.EEm_a%w._mm.m ﬁsw__.__._.nog__mueaﬁpumé_ m:ﬂ_m_umnmh:wnﬁuosuo_oc_._oso_ R
mﬁuzw maqa_. Eﬁuﬁw 14, a@g_cp u_m._m zs__aae_ms_ a_ug__._:yxeuﬁaz r " ! B o yuBid et paBeed pu maus e

.m.._mn_qu leDjweys coweD),
T 01gHeImsnpY| 109eg
o PRIRAN Ruenty sseuBenig
ITTEONADY UoaisuY:
3 Selw-opfdiiouny

‘weaysAg Buig AN oyl apisina Apapenb pa|nq aie pue sHulg [R199dS paIapisucD are pa)s|| sajUediucs sy Joj SJUNoWe padjoau| |y "sejuedwon ey o} paiig mmm.._m:u._zm Jojpue sabisyn lameg uo paseq SjUNoWy 20N

N ¢ ¥N - N b N = N 6202 [t EL6'ZL <4 118'2 1z lse's 14 oob's £2 "ou| oyoeweD Y
Zig'y 2 Zi6'2 ze ZrbLL 1e Lee's oe La'el 124 gEL's Fr BgZ'LL ¥z 160'02 12 gezg'al k4 E¥E'E 1z dT1dosd [suUisnpu; logesn
500'LL oe 185'6 oe £98'0 re 088's 28 BDE'Y 0e Li0's oe &8, =14 el 2z 9BE'E e soz's [£4 "] B5S8LL
005's1 14 186'21 8z 0EQ'ZL oz oze'it 1 IZE'EL 9z ree'vl =14 Le'pL [ 14 ori'oz 174 £EF'DZ o0z ora'LL 02 271 EAweyd vodsusl) AemubiH
99L'z2 Iz 0BB'S 14 QELL £E are's IE Zie's [:r4 6¥Z'3lL =14 =11 iz L6¥'0L 9z orL'LE 44 He'al 61 SelISnpU| '§ 8POC YBUUBAES
26512 oz LEYE [:74 ¥83°ze ¥e 8ES'VE ¥Z 162'L ¥e = HN - HN - HN o HN - uN ‘Wwe] [BUoiEN Saulwon
90z'0e sz 460°LE ¥e ooa‘ie 4 Q00'sz £2 659'zL Iz g5e'eg £4 eps'LE >4 = HN = N - N ) U] [RawaL) YNIZO
0B¥'EE 44 era'sT 14 98’0 1z 590'2Z sz PETL 8z EEL ve £61'2 62 gz0'el r4 LE2'%T 61 L48'02 24 U3 =) "ou| $adiMaG UAoNAUT
'Ly €z 69l jor4 [l <4 4 ley'ze 2z ¥68'YE £z £5€'08 T 126'61 Bl 860'¥Z 8t z98'ze al ¥ob'e 1z seg Aemgn)
zop'ay zz 1BS'EC iz - Fe g 1 £z 2588y 8l ¥e¥ it 0z L'y 81 0Z6'62 al o8l -] 986t gl bre'lE L ~ Beg Jadeq ong
Zhe'rs (¥4 leb'gg (k4 Z9i'LE 9z a8's1 :r4 5za'sL =14 oba'st 21 218'02 gk SbS'ZL 52 ={1- 37 ¥Z 206's j:r4 U] “YSN SfleN Uep
B0EEL (174 18619 0z 152°60L 8l P69 LP 0z Zeg'ay k4 piL'iE 8% 606'6} 174 18642 Jil 255've [ $Z8'vE Sl 20 ‘SeANSNpY| plEew
65502 Bl 058'eg zz DBY'ES 1z gov'ey [£4 yoL'le zZZ ezL'ze 1z PZL'PT A 50P'8Z ot 269'¥Z 84 T965'2E as eaiaes ABIBUT Sdwv-opudiiewy
698'%8 al 1¥S'6L ]! zre'on. 0z [AR1-18 {8 8Z1'851 ¥l 1ze'ee 0z N HN = N N 77 821119y UoBlsLY
0E5°'88 1 6kL'051 14 oz’ 1e -] £Z1'101 Jil fTA 1S 4 166'652 £ 95'0Le 8 Pob'rsL El Zla'eze g L50'sty z _UNSI] SRIEA A LsypoN
080'e6 gL S09'60L gl LeL'arl [-]8 08'sLl St 9E6'sP 6L £Z9'EG at ZL9'Le {8 Z60'PZ 8k 88252 24 2Z6'9L 8L "au| 'BupngUIsia SISED SN
LEB'ZEL St 18'v8 gL £66°0LL gL 66248 8l 96e'as 8l 292'62 £2 so1'8 52 LLLEL ¥2 ozr's £2 1= zz Ausdwog [Eajisyg) colwey
Sr5'0pL vl z9%'s511 g1 »08'TSL ¥t g9E0'PLL gl LEP'S0L alL oL'Le [:18 4151 ¥l 06L'8r ¥l £20'28 [£8 FAL:Y: zk WS oY
SSL'HLE et 961'861 £t obZoEl of 9B'ELY Zi oL'z01 Il FPeCLL vl £06'66 zl 291°z0L EL 86598 4 Zoa'as ) syesy Aujeny) sseuBanig
Z0L'E2Z 4} 8ii'e6 i sle'sZl il g19'le [:74 £bR'BoL {8 = N - N N o N - N 271 'ded v mebng Jeissely
Pag'THE Lb pSE'YrZ L - 980'EEZ Zl 1Se'LAp L 1S1'092 at BBO'EST ] 16g'sEL ] 2B5'251 L Z6a'z8 ol 069'68 B8 "2U| 'SIOAELS I
£0Z'9rE at £99'v9Z 11 €zr'ese 115 zZog'opl ¥l 1sh'sZL Si B6F'9GL [} ZeL'S0L 18 leb'eg £l 916'66 8 210'vL 8 Buyokosy afseld apoubis
GI9'ese [ ZZ.'66Z B aL}'692 ol 560'822 A8 £0E'EZZ 1 188194 zl 158'604 oL £61'9L1 04 [:1:3 48 8 $28'e9 51 AsIanun A wiaton
B9Z'PEE B Z09'269 g r46'5EL ] EP0'EEE 8 £68'62Y F3 £89°19r £ 169'26€ z £82'l0g 8 oav'ziy £ 208'818 L Hodny Ajunog uopusy
9Ey'0Zk 2 olL'oge oL POF' 2€0 9 PIZT'EYE 9 OV6'/25 4 z28'LLe I p8'09e £ 2B6'20E € 128128 b 965'8.€ € eaualold SN 2310,
atl'apy 9 OEL'LSY ] SLE'BRE -] 0BB'6LE 6 SI1'e0Z [ PEE"ILZ ot L8611 8 86E'GGL [ ve'ziL 9 682694 5 Jzjuag [eaipaly Yaden(s g
£S0'PLO s 89E'EZS 9 g/8'20l .8 Zap'LLe ol 869'62E 8 €55'sve 6 re8'z0z 2 sLo'srl B £2E'SZ ¥ ‘eg'eez + uleyn Addng [eqol
9zL'z8L 4 00L'eZL ¥ gE0'GER £ 198'L6L z £99°L19 4 PO£'09Z 9 - HN - HN - N B uN spood o871 eleg
255'920'} 3 Lr'isL'L I ZE9'L88 ¥ 292'485 g $50'0EY 9 ore'ese g BVE'Z9T g £90'98 zZb .oeg'eL €l 842'69 ol Jexews|se |
9i2'z8l'L z aLz'sL0'L € Lig'obs L SOZ'ErS L £l6'geg £ ELEVIL [ oli'gl €t zoz'osl ] 886'ZHL 3 B 901] £l snuBeiy-sunAT
E uN LER'60% L $50'2LL'L z §20'202 £ 899'c29 L £F9'e9S z faroa e I SPE'EgE z BET'CEL z. 668891 9 Keq yinel), sino
S59L1E'L § b 160'690'L § 6B9'ISZ'L & L Z80'e29 $ ¢ peR'SSF § & ver'err ¢ ¢ zis'8eE § ¥ vir'L0E 14 - $ ¥N . $ N . Pudang
junenry  yuey unomy  yued jnowy  yoEy jonoury  Noey jonomy  0ey mowy  Suen jufioliy ey junouly  NUEd junowy  uEy junowy ey SWEN junooay

gLz f411r4 3214 okoz 6002 8002 2002 00T S00Z ooz

slea) |eosid uaj jse
(s.n18) s1esn [elgsnpug ueayiubig doj
L "ON J913SI(] UORERUES




L6

sig)siBal Bul|iq LAS eounog (1)

802580528}

%90 G6'652'S 81¥°201 9c/'€lL.'8eS 99/.'86.'2SL 000°GL6'G8E €10c
%90y L19ZZZ'vLE’L 9.vee's 0€1'201 8E0'G09'€CS 860'G/G'9SL 000°0£0'L6E ZlLoe
%C6E 198'Z8K'L0E L 09°L00°G 666101 209'0L2'0LS Z09'Ge6'Z0L  000'SH8 L0V LLoZg
%G'LE €61'281'90L°) 16°L2L'Y 6€5°001 L09'120'SLy  L09°1L0S°09 000025 '¥SE 0102
%8'GE  8V£Z96'9¢L 16°LP9'T Zy0'00lL 120'20c'voe  120°'LGL'€S  000'SHS'0£Z 600¢
%8'9¢ 8l5'6¢C'9¢. LG 1692 G91'66 €6G'€06'09C €66'€0.'0¢  000'002'9€C 800¢
%0'€Z S9P'6.£'009 X AR LL'L6 000°626°LE) E 000'GL6LEL 2002
%8 Ll G0.'68G'CLS 11656 06+'G6 000'685°L6 - 000'685°L6 900¢
%E6L 8/1'689'G8Y SP'€00’L 89Y'¢6 000°06.°c6 - 000°06.°c6 S00¢
%L0C 81LL'G09°L9% $ 0£9L0°L $ L10°06 000'G88'96% " $ 000'G88°96% ¥00¢
oney sjessy |gjo) JUNoJIY (1) q9d a|qeled spuog JBa A |BISI4

sjassy 90IAI9g  SJUNno23Yy | Buipuelsing SO0)1ON anuaAay

01 19°( . Jomag 991A108 el

Ja2d jq0Qq Jamag
Bulpueysing

slea) |easi4 ua] jsen

}gaqg Buipueysino jo soney
L "ON }213s1g uonRues




Z6

24 |le U0 sjuswwannbel s2MI8S 198p [BNULE Jo 9brIa400 sawn (%6ZL) 6Z' L 1923] 18 40 SanuaAal Jau wiejulew o} Lag annbai sjuswsddns sy pue spuog shusasy jouisiq uoneyueg Buimoag amjuapu) 1snu)L 8661 LOS UL

spuog ua Jsa13ju] g {edIould JO UOIHO JUeLIng [2jo] Ag papIAp sonuaAay JaN [2]o] = uonenajen ebeision aoiateg 1q8q puog ,

%ECeZl %521 %52l %S21 %SZl %GZ1 %SZ1 %521 %SZL %GZL palinbay
%08/ %.G1 %6LE %502 %602 %592 %0vE %GE %blLE %282 pajejnae]

oney abeiaros eajaleg Jqaq puog

819'8ZF'0E$ +ES'98Z'0C$ 906'695'PZ $ ZOZ'ZLZ'8LS$ SOV°995'9L 4 L8P'ELL0LS PEE'GEV'S § 269°006'9 $ 066'Z98'% § £19'Z.8°L § SpUof enusAsy uo jseiequ| g ediaulg [ejo)
gLe'lor'e £16'197'C 6ZZ2'922 010z seueg
BY1'926'1 oc'res°l 618°9g D0L0Z sslRg
czL'len's GZ9'0LL'L 961'2Z¢8 80102 ssleg
BEL'ZGY'S SPS'65T'G 009°1Z8'2 , Y0LOZ Souas
9/6'6SE'Y 9z.'89¢'y 665'GLE'Y LL6'6P9'L Y600z Souag
05¥'086's 052'696'S 058°956'S 058'9v6'S 0so'era’s a6’ Le8 Y.200T sauag.
909's10'e Lie'sL0e gez'1z0'e LWr'1Z0'e $e0's20'e $86'€91'2 gLe'teL Y900¢ sausg
009'v61'y $ O00E'96L'Y 00L°86L'y 00£'S0Z'y 006'L¥9'} 006'L19'L 008'2¥8'L 00.'9Z8 VG00Z ssetlag
000°065't ¢ GIZ'EGE'E $ O00L'CEE'E $ 8B6'96E'C €9E'L0¥'E 8EB'ELY'E cLL'eiv'e 059'0t's 0S6'L¥P'S Y100Z seleg
£15'169'7 ¢ 008'0%9'Z $ 8E9'059'Z & #PZ'LO0'T § 00E'TEIVY $ £09'vEF'Y § Y8661 sauUes

spuog aNUsAIY

LIET0G2'9r § GRE'9EZ'8P S SPITPO'PP S 8BL°20V'.E 4 £OL'REC'PES BEO'LEV'BZ S €61'SZI'8T$ LOS'SSY'YZ S LLL'SOL'PZ S 9ET'SOLTTS SenuUaAey 18N

90E'S6Y Y SE6'ZL6'Y 0L6°¢LL9 £69°/6L°F 6Zr'vEl'e zel'ivt'a 109'06E ¥29'991°L g90'92y 068'9LY sasuadxz JeyiQ pue siedey Jofeny

£ra‘yieioe $Ze'080°1E ©6/'0Z9'82 ¥re'iLL'8e 859'v20'¢2 200°280'%2 9ge'age’oz 628'2e%'31 oLk'ees’zl lev'eez'st sesuadxa (RO 2oL
210008 GLG'ELR'E 215'822°2 699'G.E'2 25€'945') ¥29'086'} ori'spl £69°6.5 28£'9.29 985°'09¢ JBJBpA LUl
9LL°L0E'T 5¥'e0L'L 695'08L°L 18Z'619'1 oLL'BLE'L £6L'98y Z8e'108 218°+99 625'008 R ArAs ] ] Bunaauifug
£26°185'9 £20'612'9 6¥0'¥86°G ¥e9'aL1L'e 186'968'y Z8.'69E'Y 181'648'% £05'vre'Y Z60'819'¢ ¥1L'816'2 uopensiuipy
14£'069'9 9zZ9'96E'Y 8.€'L06'E £99'GL9'E 189'096' 609’081y sie'gve’e yav'zee'e §58'L6¥'e £26'268' wa)sAg uogos|joD
95z 421 £P6'659 Aioed uoneweay |euotBay uisisOp
L1z'esl't neZ'eze'l 20'8vrL'L FAR 4irA Al LoD'SLL'L 927215 Ao uonewetosy euotbay wisise]
G89°LEF'ZL  GZ0'996'ZL  81E'TL0'€L  OLSZ9L'BL SLS'8PL'Zl  9E0'B6Y'ZL  2L9°200°LL LOG'8SY'0L  261°0VE'S £i¥'s66°L suopels duind @ d1mm Yea1d Aig

sasuadxg Bunesadgo

025'06L'68  PPO'OCZ'YE  0JF'OEQ'A.  SRL'ZZE'0L  0SZ'J6L'ZO  6ZA'GLE'SS  0SL'ZOV'ey  ¥O8'ESO'Yy  98Z190'Cr  €95°IL8'IE sanueaey wWeisis |10
£0¥'eR 095'6L2 iyL'opy 529'926 Zor'azt’t PLE'09S') SLE'ZLE'L L1Z'v8Y') ¥SZ'LEL 98L'v0L' L awodu| Jsalsiut paldsalun
§62'958'8L  962'/S9'6L  186'/09'LZ  |BL'982'8L  ¥62'82L°9)  §S9LbE'8L  00£'€29'8L  EEFELL'OL  8LL'TTOLL  6RLI0E'YL . s89nuaAay Bunesadg om0
Zoe'ebR'0L S 986'¢6Z'FOS ZYE'ERI'OGE 68ZE'B0L'LGE PSSTYE'YY S 090'/08'8c$ See'lEe'szd vvL'Zos'sz$ viG'clE'sz$ g29'cos'izd senusasy sjey siqeanddy jejoL

sanuaAsy welsAs

£102 (42414 kL0Z ~ DLOZ 6002 - 8002 £002 8002 £00z ¥o02 -

180, [e9S]d

siea ) [easS14 U9 jsen
abeiano) ao1Meg 1g90
1 "ON JoM}SIg Uoyejjues




€6

Sueo % Spuog uo 3sessiu] g fedioulld Y JO UOHOd JuaLIng (2101 Aq PepIAIp SSNUSATY 19N [E10] = UCHE[NI[E) SBRISA0T) 39IAISS 130 [|V

%001 %001 %001 %00} %001 %001 %001 %001 %001 %001 painbay
%011 %OvL %091 %Z8l %¥81 %¥EE %0LE %EPE %ZIE %6.2 PRIBINJIED 4u
oney ebeleaosn eslaes jqeq IV
281'8S6'PE $ POL'SZY'PES S80'PPP'IT S Z60'9ES'0Z S £8+'962'9L % €92°05L°ZL$ LELTZ9ZG $ 1SA'6ELL § SOLULL6L § OELWESL $ sjuswiey jsausju] pue redisulld [ENULY-S3ION g SPUOH (1Y
6L'0.5°65P'y 1£9°9E9°¢ glLv28'2 068'8LE'Z 866°622'Z £82' L5 282178 P60'EEZ €12'39 ZL5'1L9 : jsalaju] @ [edisuld 210N 19UIO B VIM [Bel
e¥b'ig1 590°9¢ Gov'z Joydaasaiuy umoyBorg
zog'oe uIep SU0 3 qeyay uonels dwing padiopa
SZv'ee £eL'e 96¥ LORE)SAI0)ay PEBUS] Wiy
0624421 22z'a JoRuUa7) Jopo) PUe SoNBIRAH "SYIOA PESH ¥ea1) Aiq
ZEQ'LbL 00t'¥8 oLe'e peo} SMOLEN
£80'z2¢ Gov'ol S60'01 peOY |eLISNpUIAoolASIIN
€EL'EVE gkL'sLL 6GE'9 Joydaoioy Jepmoduns) J o4 yinog
£20'608 00Z'8vl 0og'Le 18uHe|D Jd LA deslD g
UZ'TrE 851'cve rLL'291 , yoougAuung
1265y o15'sg 688 uoRuajalolg [euoiBay YUY -
yev'Ly 180'61 i ZrA SPUBEOAA X810 omjues v Y
198" 16g'LL g5l's ) 1oMag Wo910) YoIpUey Vi NY
802'269 Zie'ves ZEB'TLY ¥sL'6¥L Zel'e ) THM {euoiBay twejsep
ove'ele'e $ L09'vEe'z 3 ZTTLZC'T $ 9EL'69L'T $ 998022’ & e@Tiovl $§ ZSE'Lep 061'eel g1z'L HHM _mcn_,_mow_ uigjsey
cel'sks & #06'9S 090'L5 086'15 AINOqIIN
000'cr $ /les't $ le6't $ Bupdg yusosar)
_ SejoN 2410 8 VDI
£L02 F4%i14 1102 oLoz 6002 . 8002 2002 9002 5002 002
FCCINCED N

SI29 ) [B0S14 U] Jseq
abBelaroy 891M88 120

J "ON 30L3sIq UolejIues




¥6

aob'snsusorsjelsuss ;B8AIN0G

%86 efu %6'¥} %G Sk %26 efu %GEL %EZ'EL %e'e S183A g1 J9pun
%lL Bfu %40y %E0} %YL EfU %96 %36 %E'Q s|doad |y
‘|eag AUBAGH MOIBG S| SUIUOW-Z |
1sed ay) ul swodu| ssoym efejusqisd
13A3T ALHIAD
S19'0e ¢ Bju 89z'le ¢ IS8 $ Zer'oe $ efu 41808 & UL § gsL'0e § swoou| epde) Jad
ebl'es 3 eju sea'sr ¢ ge9'ctr ¢ 609'l5 & eju Lbl'st & 180'ey ¢ L1e'e & SLIO0U] PIOYSSNOH UBipaly
JNOINI
Lol'ov LWe'zrl LL0'e9 Lil'le 655'8% Eev'eelL lol'se ils'le s08'9e sjun Buisnay ejo)
AINYANID0 DNISNOH
9E5'004 s/8'0cs Zee'Zs) ¥i'is L11'98 pIE'eEE 0ZL'181L z6z'es 29e'Es s uonendoy (enuapisey (ejoL
NOLLYINdOCd
INOOH GaNIGWOD  NOIN3X  T138dAvO 3NO08 OINIBN0OD NOINSM  TEadAvD SNOOH SIIINNOD AV Nd3HLHON
00z Z00Z
slea) Uajl

uoneULIoU| SNSUa) pue aydeiBowag AonJusy| LIDYUON.
{ "ON J913$1Q UonejIueS




G6

JAoB SnsUaY ZIopulgoe; (@0In0g

e/ %18 %L'6 %0'8 LB %031 %y'El %G 1L B/U %E'9 %0’ %8G J8p|O pue SIB8 69
e/ %b¥L %EGL %9'6 B/U %011 %0°LZ %96 B/ %G5G YUEET %0'G1L sIza ) gl Japun
%56 %2701 %L0L %60 %96 %49 % EL %Z'8 %0°LL %L1l %EEL %58 erdoad |1y
%Z'/ %eL %l'8 %S %52 %G9 %t LI %6S %88 %08 %L1 %0°g saIWe Iy
‘[oA8T] AUBAO MOJSq S| SYUOW-Z ]
1sed ey} ul eluoau| asoym ebirjuasisd
TIAFT ALYEAOd
609'02$ 650'92 ¢ 066'9Z &  00ViZ ¢ T 99192 ¢ G00'sz $ 82L'9z $ Le8'ves 626°v2 ¢ lec'ez ¢ ¥6t'92 § awwoou] epdeg Jad
96¥'/9$  Zee'co ¢ 659 §  THE'EL $ ZLL'99% L6L'G9 § 750'29 § 620'1L cr9'19% 82219 § #9e'98 §$ 0Z0'.9. % aWoou| ployesnoy tesly
E/U o0g'zs ¢ #8006 $  PEE'Z9 ¢ B/U 8L6'€S § 0z0'sr $ L27'95 8 Eju 619°9F ¢ GEQ'OF $ agL'ys ¢ 8W0oU| PlOYSSNOH UEIPSLy
_ _ 3NODNI
%Q9'E %8'E %L'E %'e %BL'E %9'Z %Gt %S B/U %S'¥ %l¥ B/u abejusaled paioidweun
z08's SBY't 1£6'2 9/ 8956 GEL'e oro'e 282'¢ e/u ree's £69'2 Efu pafojdweun
%029 %259 %8'co %E'ZL %9°29 %929 %g'e9 %0'LL BjU %9'29 %L°E9 gu abejranied pafodwiy
96°081 960'8. oFS'er 22E'65 0gv'esl 810°18 LED'EP SZY'65 /U 192'€1 8FZ' LY efu podojdwz
002°061 165'28 210'9¥ 860'29 gri'e6L £51'p8 £680'9F Z12'eo ore'Lel L0L'62 Lve'ey 862'8% lod JogeT ueiialg W uofendad
gG1'042 9us'slL 00t'99 690'Z8 ¥L8'1LE #08'6L1 0£0'89 089'e8 soL'egl 2BL'2LL 228'e9 g/u 1ple pue 1ok gl uogemdod
SNIYLS INFWAOTAWA
e/ 008'6ELS 00c'2ELS  006'LALS efu 008'0FL S 005 LLE 008'621% B/ 008'¢E1$ 00Z'ccLs 000091 $ (anjen) ueipey
%96 %Ll %06 %0'8 %/6 %Ll %E'B %p'L %0'6 %60L %0'8 %Z'9 eley Buisnop| yuesep
9581 ¥26'L 68V'E erP's SEL'vlL GZ8"L 0l9'e 00zZ'c 2og'el o'z lez'e 0652 spun Buishoy jueses
LBF'8E 19281 GZH'6 S08'01 5/¢'6¢ 185’81 529'6 69LLL 2L1'8¢ 0141 ¥r0's 995'Z1 sjun paidnaso-rejuey
£9/'26 L6E‘SY LeL'seg Lrg'ae 862’26 166'ZP £iy'se +69'92 GPE'06 299'eP z50'92 629'92 siuN PRIAN2V0-IRUME
62881 Zok'19 a51'se av9'se £l9ggl zi5'19 gc0'se £90°0F zZheEL G809 960'SE 161°6€ spupn Buisnoy patdnzog
041451 9.£'69 Gbo'gs 620'ch g0¥° LS| L6b'69 8bo'ss goz'er asv'eyl gig'aeg £6E'8E 182° Ly siun Buisnoy feyoL
ADNYANID0 ONISNOH
7.6'822 vGa'L0L 122'28 16¥'69 602'622 12Z'20} 8v0'4S 9c6'69 £91'222 LOS'66 LLL'sg G¥g'L9 1[0 pue s1eak 67 uone|ndod
8L0'GPE £80°251 LLE'FS 680'80) 29¥'2¥E Zec'zsl Iyv'es 6£9'601 £69'ZHE 66.°161 0iZ'se $89'G01 sployasnoH uj suoje|ndod
£5'2 s or'z €L ¥5'Z e e ¥ PST 05e £z 0.2 5215 ployosnoy afiesoay
¥GE'9E} FA ke 9gl'se org'6e £29'9g) z/5'19 820'Ge £90'0F zZl'eel 6£8'09 960'GE 161'6E SPIOYasnoH [ej0L
SATOH3SMNOH
e/ 1’98 Y 1> e g g'9g it 0'ce B/ 268 (VA 8've (s1eak) eBy ueipay
820'15¢ 0L 651 665°08 620'601 . 2gg'15E 118'FS) 998'08 080'0LL £69'THE 664'161 olz'se $89'501 uonendod [ejo
NOLLY INdOd
JINIEROD NOINSYM Ti=ddmve  SNooa GINIGWNOD NOINZM Tiaadwvo  SNOod JINIgA0D NOINGY Tiga8dWve SNOod S3IINNOD AM NYIHLHON
{SovI 9602 {SOVI 5002
siea) usy

uofjeuuoju) snsua pue sydeiGowoaq Ajonjuay wWayuoN

} "ON 19LS1(] UOREHUES




96

JnoBshsusd zispulyjory [92IN0gS

%eL %89 %¥'9 %0'6 e %Z'L %9, %E'S Eju %P8 %601 %L L 1ap|O puE sIEBA 59
%Sl %18t %P'SL %G'6 e/ %0zl %E°EL %g'L e %t bl %979l %G9 81894 g1 Japun
%90l %ZZL %011 %19 %96 %0ZL %96 %Z'9 %6 %¥ 0L %L %8S ajdoad (v
%09 %0'6 %S %29 %S4 %86 %EL %G %99 %z %BE"L %zt sajwed Iy
9AST >tm>0n_ Mmoleq sl syjuow-z
umma AL} W SUOOU| asoym mmmuc_mu._mn_
T3ATT ALYINO
0692 $ £/8'9Z $ £28's2 ¢ 068’z § OEP'LZ § gz’ ¢ sigiz ¢ 06l'/2 698’2z ¢ sey'iz ¢ 0oLz % ozs'se § ewoou| ejden 184
262'69 § ¥se'9s § LEY9 § 856'9L ¢ £9/'69 § £26'99 $ z'ie % Lse'as § $52'0L 60089 § 80649 @& 698'0. ¢ BUODU| POYBLNOY UEBRY
Bju ore'Lls § zZizsy § /8599 ¢ Bju oLe'ls ¢ zZ08'08 % ¥96'29 § =] ZI8'e % oes'0s § 6/6'sa $ 8L} PIOYSSNOH LEpay
‘ INOINI
%E'S %9°g %G5S %8 %'y %S %0t %ee %e'S %e'e %8'E %0'E - abejusoiad padojdwaun
gzL'st £56'0 zre's szz'y 188" Zrs's 129'2 gie's 890'6 $Z6'C €15'2 0.s'e pedojdwsaun
%Z ¥ %L'EQ %1°le %929 %t'98 %9'69 %5'€E9 %8°68 %829 %499 %E'E9 %8EL ebejueiag pekoidua
8zZL'1alL £58'8, £OR'EY FALY: 0v0'g8L ¥9.'08 LIV b £08'09 gog'sel ¥62'08 Sel'ey 1£9°L9 pafoidwg
ab2'o6t 908'5e S08'LY 1E2'E9 122161 802'98 ety £21'v9 £61°¥61L 8iz'va 202'9Y 99Z'v9 82104 J0geT UBlAD W uoiendog
#S0'ceZ Peg8'eT) BZR'LL Le'La pal'oge LL0'EC) 12004 260'L8 £99'6L2 yey'oclL 6/5'89 099'v8 lepjo pue sieeh g) uolendod
SNLVYLS ANTWAOTHNG
B/ 006'2¥L & 00Z'L5L 5 coL'ell ¢ BjU 009’2l & 009'Erl & 0L Ll § e ooz'orl $ Q00BZPL & 00L'22L % (anjep) uetpaty
%P6 %96 %S0} %Z'8 %46 %L6 %L1 %b'e %E'S %Z 0L %b'6 %Ll siey Buisnoy ueoep
BE5'YL 1£9'9 251'% lgl'e 786'7 £88'e ¥ee'y sal's SYZ'rL o08LL 999'c 66E'E sjun Buisnoy juedeA
1L89'8e 98.'61 &90'01 abe's P08'6e 919'0z 259'6 9e8'6 elLp'ee 121'81 L19'g B30'0L sjun paidnooQ-iejusy
$66'66 ey o8l'sz 8128 $60°001 \ZE'SY 9ze'se 8YS'LE 5/9'66 e’y 8£9'6¢ 00.'0€ gyun paidnaag-1Iaump
a.9'sel 28¢'29 §5z'se ££0'ZF 662'651 1£6'¢9 8.8'%E ¥80°L¥ 880'6E ) #90'c9 gsz'se 69.'ov spun Buisnoy peidnsog
S12'wst 61069 Ziv'eg val'sy 188°¥S1 028'04 FARAL} 6¥3'Fr EEC'ES) ¥rz'oL 1z6'ee 89l 'y spun Buishoy ol
ADNYINDD0 ONISNOH
162'98 oLl 9/9'0L 5050l : B Bl Bju - e Bju Bju Japio pue sJesd 59 uopeIndod
985'6E2 £L2'501 626'85 aoe'ss LT 1A og0'sol oL¥'es ¥o6'vL 020'282 GZ6'20L poz'is La8'LL 1apjo pue siesk gz uojeindogd
046'958 §06°251 ¥69'va LLL'9LL §5.'€SE oz6'ss1 ZoB'2g log'viy 96E'8YE 0EL'bSL 9.6'¢e Z6Z'LLL SPIOYesSNoH uy suoje|ndod
182 75T or'z 812 €52 ¥z 8T 08'e 05z A See g2 8ZIg ployssnoH abeseny
9/9'6El 23¢'29 gsg'ee £e0'ey 66R'6EL L86'E9 2/8've PRO'LY 880'681 00°e0 G52'se 69.L°0F sployasnoy [ejo)
SAICHASNOH
By z'9g 6'9g 9'GE Bfu gge zie £'se B 298 1'ge e (sue0k) oby uBipay
£b0's9e ¥ZL65L 185'68 gee'llL 90¢'19¢ 664'161 gLL'29 ¥8L'GH zlg'sse Fiv'osL Zon'os 960°Z4L uopie[ndog [elo)
NOLLYINAdOd
GINMEWNOD NOINZY  T198dWva SNCOg O3NEW0D NOINGM  TIHEdAYD INOCH daNIEANOD  NOLNEM RRECELLA) 3Nood S3INNOD AM NEIHIHON
SOJEUWIsT 168 \-§ S0Y) 600¢
sJeo uaj

uopjewioiu] snsuas pue sydelBowag Aonjusy wiaypoN

L "ON }oL3S1Q uogepues




L6

Jnobsnsugoziapuifor) esnog

%eL %eL %L %6 lap|O pue siesA 69
%89l %8°'LZ %6'SL %9°L ) S1BaA 8 Jepun
%ZEZL %EPL %eZl %E'6 aydoad |y
%E6 %4 0L %6 %eL safiwed I

‘|eas Apenod mojeq Si SYIUOW-Z|
18Bd &Y} U BWOoY| 8souym efeluecied

TIATT ALH3AOd
gZe'oe ¢ 2001z % vel'sz 8ve'Lz ¢ swoou| epde) tod
299'6¢ ¢ ¥eo'sa ¢ Z69'29 & lon'11 & BWOU| PlOYSSNOH LBy

B £8L'e ¢ 0g0'is § Zhi'ss & alucou| ployesnoy usipeiy
INOONI
%6'S %Z'9 %9 %LG afmuealad pefodwaun
068'9l gEL'L £he'y 60S'Y padojdwaln
%L'c9 %6719 %129 %.1'69 ebesoisd pakojduz
885081 ¥e0'LL ‘666'YY 955'9% paho|duiz
BL¥°L61 ZLLYS Zro'sy §90'c9 89104 Jogqer] UeyiAL] ut uoieindod
600°98% S6Y'VEL ¥er'zL 060'68 lepio pue sreak 9| uoyendogd
SNLVLS INIWACTING
BfU ooL'syl $ 0oF'irl § 006'FLL & (en[ep) velpapy
%S0l %90l %L VL %18 ajey Buisnoy juedep,
0ge'9l ysv'L ore'y 9ze'y sjun BuisnoH Jueoep
$Z0'ag f08°6t gzr'ol 182's spun poidnosg-ejuey
Zrv'e6 0a1'zy 005'v2 ZoLze SHUN peIdNTaCHIBUMO
197’88} 89¥'L9 926°rE £50'gr sun Buisno paidnoog
28251 Zra'eo 995'68 elZ'oy siun Buisnoy elo),
AONYNDD0 SNISNOH
co5'6g LAV oeL'LL c0z'LL Japjo pue steak g9 uonendod
[X:) A TA veR's0L 9/9'68 128'9L 1epio pue s.esd 5z uoemdod
ZzZ5'e8e SZLI5L 589’8 zol'ell spjoyasnol uj suopaindod
[44 ak'e e ze'e 823 ployesnoH eBelaay
Lav'sel Bab'Lo 926'vE £50'CY Spoyasno} [ejel
SATOHASNOH
e £98 g'ee 9'gE (srasd) oby ueipa
0cL'6SE LPa'651 BLE'0B POS'8LL vonejndo [e10)
NOILY iNdOd
T3aNEWOT NOINEM  TiSadiv) INOOE SIINAGD T3 NISAIEON
SOJENS Jeak-€ SOV) LH0Z
slea) ua]

uoRRULIOIY] SNSUd) pue siydeiBoweg AYonuey UIaLyIoN
| "ON J0L0SIg UCHEJIURS




86

éﬁﬁrt T
AEEE .J.Twﬂm.;m Sl

I sisr .E v_oom €102 1aunog) wwac_wzm mo._:om
%8'6 %81 569'Z¢ e R
%E0 . %l 0002 HA
%E0 bulures :owanc 1 %11 0c€0‘z Alsionun AYonjuay ulsyuoN
%E0 0D R SSNEJS 1A97 %< | 0G6le "OU| s8UiT Iy Bjla(
%e0 Spood 887 eleg %Z L 002'C Sjooyog AJUN0Y UOUSY
%¥ 0 *ou| ‘deo) ay | %E’ L 06C'¢ 1)
%90 ou| “BYA pood S,uemyos %L | GEL'e "0D Jaboly
%0 "ou| 'yN "B Jojop ej0Ao] ‘ %61 8ye'e s|o00yog Ajunoy suoog
%6 L SjUSLLYSaAU| Ajtjepi %Z'¢C 000'¥% sjuswisaau| Ajiiepl
%EC saulT Jiy ejjaqg %E'C 001’y 9VIAISG BNUSASY [eulslu|
%9°¢ "oul "HIVINOD %L¥ cyy'. aledyjlea yleqezi|g 1S

Y002 8 €102
siafojdwz ua] doj Ajonjuay wiayuoN
L "ON }2U3sig uojjejiueg




66

Z10Z/P SUIUO JUSM AJI[198 UOHBWRIDSY JOIEA 1RUOIBe ) LLDISOAA 4.
200Z/01 aunuo jusm AIoe uoiewe|osy Jajepn [eucibey uleiseg

siswnaop 196png Lag eanog (2)
(syJomge) spiodsy wawwabeuey uoneLlIo AolelodeT] LGS e2unog (1)

912 k4 842 474 6¥2 vz 144 102 1] 2:] 8 SIIAOTLING TV1OL
14 oY g LG 1S Gg 6 9 c9 ¥a qet pue ¥aa10 Ag
€l €l 0 Juejd [euctfiay WSSO
6 ]! gL Ll 9 9 - sjue[d jews pue [euoibey wig)sel
£l ) vl 8l £l €l Zl < - A (suonels dwnd) Yo | piel
68 €8 88 8 8z 6. 19 ¥9 6G 95 weysAg UoloBY0D)
vl 8l 0 0 0 0 0 G G 14 slepn WIo)s
LT L2 8¢ rd iy ob 8Y 9¢ 62 62 suopeledp/Bussuibul
Z9 19 1 ot ot ev 6¢ ge Le LE uojensIuupY
(Z) STHATT ONIHAVLS
L's¢ L'OY 9'9e 6'9¢ £'ze G'GE 9've G'Geg 628 6'¥E 50L
9. A 002 «=HM [eUCIBEY LIBISaA
80 80 60 oL 60 Al 0P _»JNM [euoifoy uisise]
£L2 8'GE L'Se 6'GE vlie L'pE 9've g'ce 6'2¢ 6'vE g'ov yesrD A
(1) MOTd LNV 1d ININLYIHL
eLoe Z1oz LLOT 0L0Z 6002 8002 2002 9002 S002 002 asw
{aOIN) mold Jejeameisep Alleq 26eisay Ayoedes
- ubisag
129 |eosl |

siea), [eosld Ua] 1se

sansnelg bupetsado snosue|99siN
| "ON 19M3SIq Uonejiues




00l

sap ayewxosddy (1)

splodal §19 LAS 92Inog

S1IaMag LIo}S Sjeledas JO sajp
suonels pooj4
suoners dungd

siue|d JuswWjesl | I19)eMSISBAA [[BWS
sjuB|d JusLijeal | Jajemalsen) |euolbfoy
suiep 82104

(1) sismeg Auejueg Jo S9N

Ob¥ Ll 0¥ 652 o114

g1 Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl

£el Ll €L get 1€l LEL ocl 621 Y4} £zl

14 ¥ - 14 b ¥ 8 8 g 8

£ € A 4 r4 Z I I ! }

8. 98 98 08 08 8. 8. 8. 8. 8/

009'} 0091 009'1 009'L 009'L 005') 0051 005°L 005'1 00t'L
€102 rANit4 1102 0102 6002 8002 2002 9002 5002 $002

, Jea A (eastd

slea) |eodsld ua] )se
sonsne)s Jessy jejded
|l "ON }oM}sIq uonjejiueg










